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(For the year ended 31 December0 000 000DOOOODODOO

1 FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY Oo0oo0Oooo
RMB’000 goooao
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
ooodo 0OO0OO0oo0Oo0 OO0obOoo Oooooo oOoooo
(Restated)
goooo
Revenue oo 5675386 4,416,563 3,306,519 5,578,524 6,503,428
Gross profit oo 1,138,857 620,901 28,270 914,408 1,074,976
Profit (loss) before tax oooomooo 270,378 (562,959) (976,452) 215,023 290,104
Profit attributable to owners gooooo
of the Company oooo 143,797 (678,801) (995,228) 310,632 221,410
Basic earnings (loss) per share ooooomooo
(RMB)* oooooo* 0.172 (0.814) (1.004) 0.132 0.088
Diluted earnings (loss) per share ooooomooo
(RMB)* oooooo* 0.172 (0.814) (1.004) 0.132 0.088
Non-current assets ooooo 4,699,411 4,825,233 4,682,596 5,264,592 6,005,322
Current assets oooo 7,675,517 6,571,894 7,274,664 8,458,746 8,592,662
Non-current liabilities ooooo 3,448,327 245,129 4,602,960 3,612,931 3,424,563
Current liabilities oooo 4,436,268 7,460,266 3,317,564 5,521,938 6,491,422
Net assets oooo 4,490,333 3,691,732 4,036,736 4,588,469 4,681,999
REVENUE PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
oo OF THE COMPANY
Oo0o0oo0ooooa
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors, | am pleased to present the annual results
of China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021
(the “Year” or the “reporting period”).

As of 31 December 2021, the Group realized a total revenue of RMB6.503
billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 16.58%; the operating
profit amounted to approximately RMB580 million, representing a year-
on-year increase of 27.45%; the total profit amounted to RMB290 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of 34.92%.

FOCUS ON THREE PRINCIPAL BUSINESSES,
STRENGTHEN THE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT
RESULTS

During the year, the revenue of the clean energy business amounted to
RMB4.172 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 36.15%; the tariff
revenue amounted to RMB456 million, representing a year-on-year increase
of 21.6%. As of 31 December 2019, the Group has owned clean energy
assets with an aggregate installed capacity of over 700MW in Guangdong,
Hunan, Shandong, Xinjiang and other parts of the country.

The revenue of the green building business amounted to RMB1.897 billion,
representing a year-on-year increase of 38.49%. During the year, through the
extension of the industrial chain, the Group’s technical support, construction
management capabilities and brand influence have improved greatly; the
Group has also won the bid on the new infrastructure project of Yunnan 5G
signal tower and some other major green building projects such as Suzhou
Huamao.

The revenue of the new material business amounted to RMB131 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of 32%. The market share of the
Group’s ITO film was near 65%, firmly securing a top position in the market.
The light-adjusting film products continued to maintain a leading position
with a market share of 40%. The Group has officially commenced the mass
production of vehicle film, laying a good foundation for the full entry into the
automotive industry.
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INSIST ON TAKING THE LEAD, EMPHASIZE ON
TECHNOLOGY EMPOWERMENT

The Group insists on taking the lead, focusing on the principal businesses,
and constantly upgrading in the industry. During the year, the Group ranked
195th in the “Top 500 Global New Energy Enterprises” in 2021, an increase
of 86 places year-on-year. The Company ranked top ten for ten consecutive
years in the China’s building and decoration industry (curtain wall category),
with the seventh place in 2021.There were 79 new patents and 7 new
standards issued throughout the year, including one international standard
and one national standard related to the recycling of photovoltaic modules.
The photovoltaic project of the headquarters’ industrial park was successfully
selected as the second batch of the national smart photovoltaic pilot and
demonstration project.

ACCELERATE ENTERPRISE TRANSFORMATION,
OPT FOR HIGH-QUALITY DEVELOPMENT

Looking forward, as the country steadily facilitates energy transformation
and reform, Shuifa Singyes Energy will resolutely and comprehensively
implement the national energy security strategy and highly participate in the
reform of energy production and consumption, in a bid to build a clean and
low-carbon modern energy system emphasizing on safety and efficiency.
On that note, the Group will establish a development philosophy centering
on economic benefits, strengthen refined management, and opt for high-
quality development, so as to continuously improve the economic benefits.
The Group will also establish a business philosophy focusing on its principal
businesses, with the aim of accelerating its transformation into a high-quality
green power operator with core competitiveness and becoming a leading
clean energy enterprise with a scale of RMB100 billion. Moreover, the
Group will establish a responsibility philosophy which prioritizes serving the
society, increase investment in ESG, and enhance the awareness of social
responsibility, thereby promoting sustainable development of the society.
With the clean energy and low-carbon construction businesses as the main
driving force, the Group will continue to expedite the construction of rural
infrastructure and industrial development.

Zheng Qingtao

Chairman

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERME

OVERVIEW

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) recognise the importance of
incorporating elements of good corporate governance in the management
structures and internal control procedures of the Group so as to achieve
effective accountability. This report outlines the principles and the code
provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The
Directors consider that, for the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company
has applied the principles and complied with all the applicable code
provisions set out in the Code, except with the deviation set out in this report.

In accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Company
has established an audit committee in compliance with paragraph C.3
of the Code to oversee the financial reporting system and internal control
procedures of the Group so as to ensure compliance with the Listing Rules. It
has also established a nomination committee and a remuneration committee
with defined terms of reference.

The Directors are committed to upholding the corporate governance practices
of the Company to ensure formal and transparent procedures are in place to
protect and maximize the interests of the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”).

Set out below is a detailed discussion of the corporate governance practices
adopted and observed by the Company from the listing date up to the date of
this report (the “Review Period”).

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as the standard for securities transactions by Directors.
The Company has made specific enquiries of all the Directors and all the
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required standards set
out in the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions throughout the year.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of Directors (the “Board”) takes responsibility to oversee all major
matters of the Company, including the formulation and approval of overall
business strategies, internal control and risk management systems, and
supervising and monitoring the performance of the senior management who
are delegated with the authority and responsibility for day-to-day management
and operation of the Company. The Directors have the responsibility to act
objectively in the interests of the Company.

Currently, the Board comprises nine Directors, including four executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Zheng Qingtao, who is also the Chairman of the
Company, Mr. Liu Hongwei, who is also the Vice-chairman of the Company,
Mr. Chen Fushan and Mr. Wang Dongwei, two non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Xie Wen and Ms Li Li and three independent non- executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon, Dr. Wang Ching, and Dr. Tan
Hongwei.

The Board has a strong independent element in its composition with over half
of the board members are non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors to ensure that all decisions of the Board are made in the
best interest of the Group’s long-term development.

The Board has delegated various responsibilities to the Board committees
including the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”) (collectively, the “Board Committees”).
Further details of these committees are set out below on pages 14 to 18.

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director having
sound board level experience and expertise relevant to the business
operations and development of the Group. The Board is comprised of
members with extensive business, government, regulatory and policy
experience from a variety of backgrounds. There is diversity of nationality,
ethnicity, educational background, functional expertise and experience. A
Board Diversity Policy was adopted by the Board in 2013.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERME

BOARD MEETINGS

The Company will adopt the practice of holding board meetings regularly
for at least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals. Adhoc
meetings will also be convened if necessary to discuss the overall strategy as
well as the operation and financial performance of the Group. Notice of board
meeting will be sent to all Directors at least 14 days prior to a regular board
meeting. Reasonable notices will also be given to the Directors for ad-hoc
board meetings.

Directors may participate either in person or through electronic means of
communications.

The Company will adopt the practice to provide relevant materials to all
the Directors relating to the matters brought before the meetings. All the
Directors will be provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties,
and, upon reasonable request, the Directors will be able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses. All Directors will have the opportunity to include matters in the
agenda for Board meetings.

Prior notice convening the Board meeting was dispatched to the Directors
setting out the matters to be discussed. At the meeting, the Directors were
provided with relevant documents to be discussed and approved. The
company secretary of the Company is responsible for keeping minutes of the
Board meetings.

Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial shareholder of the
Company or a Director arise, the matter will be discussed in a physical Board
meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by a written resolution. Independent
non-executive Directors with no conflict of interest will be present at meetings
dealing with such conflict issues.

An updated list of the Directors identifying the independent non-executive
directors and the roles and functions of the Directors is maintained on the
website of the Company and the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
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During the reporting period, the Board held a total of 4 Board meetings. The
attendance of individual Directors at the board meetings and annual general

meeting are set out below:

Board Meetings

' § CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Attendance
good

Special General

Meeting held on

6 December 2021

Annual gooooo

Name of Directors General Meeting 00000000 Board Meeting
gooo gooooo gooooo gooood
Executive Directors oooad
Mr. Zheng Qingtao (Chairman) ooooWwooo 0/1 0/1 4/4
Mr. LIU Hongwei (Vice Chairman) ooooovoooo 0/1 0/1 4/4
Mr. Chen Fushan ooooo 0/1 0/1 4/4
Mr. Wang Dongwei ooooo 0/1 0/1 4/4
Non-executive Directors goooo
Mr. Xie Wen pooo

(appointed on 17 February 2022) oo0000b0oOoOo0oOooooo NAO DO NAO OO NAD OO
Ms. Li Li oooo

(appointed on 21 May 2021) oo0000oooOoOoOoooooo 01 01 3/4
Ms. Wang Suhui ooooo

(resigned on 17 February 2022) oo0000b0OoOoOOo0oOoooo 01 01 3/4
Mr. Zhang Jianyuan ooooo

(resigned on 21 May 2021) go0000ooOoOoOoOooooo 01 01 1/4
Independent Non-executive Directors U O0O00O00
Dr. WANG Ching ooooo 0/1 0/1 4/4
Mr. YICK Wing Fat, Simon ooooo 1/1 1/1 4/4
Dr. Tan Hongwei ooooo 0/1 0/1 4/4

Code Provision E.1.2 of the Code specifies that the chairman of the Board
should attend the annual general meeting. Mr. Zheng Qingtao, the chairman
of the Board, has not attended the Company’s annual general meeting held
on 10 June 2021 due to COVID-19 restrictions. Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon,
the independent non-executive Director, attended and took the chair of
the aforementioned annual general meeting and answered questions from

Shareholders.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERME

SKILLS, KNOWLEDGE, EXPERIENCE AND
ATTRIBUTES OF DIRECTORS

All Directors of the Board had served in office durng the period under review.
Every Director commits to give sufficient time and attention to the affairs
of the Company. The Directors also demonstrate their understanding and
commit to high standards of corporate governance. The executive Director
brings his perspectives to the Board through his deep understanding of the
Group’s business. The non-executive Directors and the independent non-
executive Directors contribute their own skills and experience, understanding
of local and global economies, and knowledge of capital markets to the
Group’s business. The Company is responsible for arranging and funding
suitable continuous professional development programmes for all Directors to
hone and refresh their knowledge and skills.

INDUCTION AND TRAINING

Each newly appointed Director, executive or non-executive, is required
to undertake an induction program to ensure that he has a proper
understanding of his duties and responsibilities. The induction program
includes an overview of the Group’s business operation and governance
policies, the Board meetings’ procedures, matters reserved to the Board,
an introduction of the Board committees, the Directors’ responsibilities and
duties, relevant regulatory requirements, review(s) of minutes of the Board
and Board committees in the past 12 months, and briefings with senior
officers of the Group and site visits (if necessary). Pursuant to the Code
Provision A.6.5 of the Code, all Directors should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. This is to ensure their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant. During the Year, all Directors had participated in appropriate
continuous professional development activities by ways of attending training
and/or reading materials relevant to the Company’s business or to the
Directors’ duties and responsibilities.
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The company secretary of the Company maintains records of training
attended by the Directors. The training attended by each Director during the

Year is tabulated as follows:

Training Records

' § CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Name Type of trainings Training matters
oo oooo oooo
(Note 1) (Note 2)
ooo 1o 00020
Executive Directors oooo
Mr. Zheng Qingtao (Chairman) ooooooo a, b i, i, dii, iv
Mr. LIU Hongwei (Vice chairman) 0o000moooo a, b i, i, i, iv
Mr. Chen Fushan goooo a, b i, i, i, iv
Mr. Wang Dongwei goooo a,b i, i, i, iv
Non-Executive Directors goooo
Mr. Xie Wen oooo
(appointed on 17 February 2022) gooooooooooooooo NADO DO NAODODO
Ms. Li Li oooo
(appointed on 21 May 2021) ooooooOoooooooooon a, b i, i, i, iv
Ms. Wang Suhui gooooo
(resigned on 17 February 2022) goo00oOo0ooooooooa a, b i, i, il iv
Mr. Zhang Jianyuan ooooo
(resigned on 21 May 2021) goooooooooooooaoo a, b i, i, il v
Independent Non-Executive Directors goooooo
Dr. WANG Ching ooooo a, b i, i, i, iv
Mr. YICK Wing Fat, Simon gooooo a, b i, i, il v
Dr. Tan Hongwei goooo a, b i, i, il iv
Note 1: 0oo1o
a attending seminar or training session a gooooooooo
b self-development and updates relating to general economy, business b goooboooooboooboOoooOoooo
development, director’s duties and responsibilities, etc. gooooooo
Note 2: 0020
i corporate governance i gooo
ii regulatory compliance ii gooo
iii finance iii oo
iv management and operation iv goooo

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2021
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TEERME

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

For the year ended 31 December 2021, Mr. Zheng Qingtao has been the
chairman of the Board and Mr. Wang Dongwei has been the president of the
Company. The division of the responsibilities between the chairman of the
Board and the president has been clearly set out in writing.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All independent non-executive Directors of the Company possess a wealth
of professional and industry expertise and management experience and
have provided their professional advices to the Board. They have played a
significant role in the Board by virtue of their independent judgment and
their views carry significant weight in the Board’s decision. In particular, they
bring an impartial view on issues of the Company’s strategy, performance and
control. The Board also considers that independent non-executive Directors
provide independent advice on the Company’s business strategy, results and
management so that all interests of Shareholders are taken into consideration,
and the interests of the Company and its shareholders are taken into account
in all business decisions. The Company has received the annual confirmation
signed by each independent non-executive Director to acknowledge their
respective independence. After prudent enquiry, the Board is of the view that
each of Mr. YICK Wing Fat, Simon, Dr. WANG Ching, and Dr. Tan Hongwei
maintains the independence as required by Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All independent non-executive Directors of the Company will review, on an
annual basis, any decisions in relation to new business opportunities referred
to the Company. As at the date of this report, there is no new business
opportunity introduced to the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify
its Directors and officers in respect of legal actions against the Directors.
Throughout 2021, no claim had been made against the Directors and the
officers of the Company.
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APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

The Bye-laws of the Company provide that at each annual general meeting,
one-third of the directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation
and that every director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years.

All of the non-executive Director and independent non-executive Directors
are appointed for a specific term but they are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting in accordance with
the Articles. The term of appointment of each Independent Non- Executive
Director has been set out in the section headed “Directors’ Service Contracts”
of this report. Each independent non-executive Director is required to inform
the Company as soon as practicable if there is any change that may affect his
independence and must provide an annual confirmation of his independence
to the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee pursuant to a resolution of
the Directors passed on 19 December 2008 in compliance with Rules 3.21 to
3.23 of the Listing Rules and paragraph C.3 of the Code. The primary duties
of the Audit Committee are to oversee the financial reporting process and
internal control procedure of the Group, to review the financial information
of the Group and to consider issues relating to the external auditor. The
Audit Committee consists of the three independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Dr. Wang Ching, Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon and Dr. Tan Hongwei,
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon is the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee has reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial statements for
the six months ended 30 June 2021 and for the year ended 31 December
2021, the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and the

system of internal control.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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The Audit Committee has considered significant issues on the financial
reporting, operational and compliance controls, the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems and internal audit function,
appointment of external auditors, engagement of non-audit services and
relevant scope of works and arrangements for employees to raise concerns

about possible improprieties.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Audit Committee held 2
meetings.

The Audit Committee communicate with the external auditor, internal audit
consultant and also the management regularly to ensure internal control
policies were properly implemented by the management; and the financial
statements comply with internal accounting standards in all material aspects.

The following table shows the attendance of members of the Audit

Committee’s meetings:

oooooooboooooooobobooooo
gooooobooocoooooooboooo
gooooooooooooooboooo
ooooooboooooooooobobooooo
oooooooo

obooooobooocoooooooboooo
ooooooooog

obooooobooocoooooooboooo
ooooooboooooooooobooooo
ooooooobooooooobobooooo
ooooooood

gboooboooboooobooooooo

No. of Audit Committee
meetings attended/held:

Directors: oooooooooo
ooo gooooo
YICK Wing Fat, Simon (Chairman) oowooo 2/2
Dr. WANG Ching ooooo 2/2
Dr. Tan Hongwei goooo 2/2

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to perform its
duties. Latest terms of reference of the Audit Committee can be viewed on
the website of the Company and the website of the Stock Exchange.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee pursuant to a
resolution of the Directors passed on 19 December 2008 in compliance
with paragraph B.1 of the Code. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy for remuneration of Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on
such remuneration and for fixing the remuneration packages for all Directors.
The Remuneration Committee consists of five members, including three
independent non-executive Directors and the Chairman and Vice-chairman
of the Board, namely, Dr. Tan Hongwei, Mr. Zheng Qingtao, Mr. Yick Wing
Fat, Simon, Dr. Wang Ching and Mr. Liu Hongwei. The Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee is Dr. Tan Hongwei.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Remuneration Committee
held 1 meeting to assess individual performance of the Directors and review
the remuneration packages and overall benefit of the Directors. The following
table shows the attendance and members of the

Remuneration Committee during the year ended 31 December 2021:
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No. of Remuneration Committee
meetings attended/held:

Directors: gboooooooon
ooo oooooo
TAN Hongwei (Chairman) oowooo 1/1
ZHENG Qingtao ooo 1/1
YICK Wing Fat, Simon ooag 1/1
WANG Ching ooo 11
LIU Hongwei ooo 1/1

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources to perform
its duties. The current duties and responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee are more specifically set out in its latest terms of reference, details
of which can be viewed on the website of the Company and the website of
the Stock Exchange.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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Nomination Committee

The Company established a Nomination Committee pursuant to a
resolution of the Directors passed on 19 December 2008 in compliance
with Recommended Best Practices of paragraph A.5 of the Code. The
primary duties of the Nomination committee include reviewing the structure,
size, composition and diversity of the Board on a regular basis and
making recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed changes.
The Nomination Committee consists of five members, including three
independent non-executive Directors and two executive Directors, namely
Mr. Zheng Qingtao, Mr. Liu Hongwei, Dr. Wang Ching, Mr. Yick Wing Fat,
Simon, and Dr. Tan Hongwei. The Nomination Committee is chaired by
Mr. Zheng Qingtao.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted the board diversity policy which sets out the approach
to achieve diversity on the Board. Accordingly, selection of candidates to the
Board is based on a range of measurable objectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional experience
and qualifications, skills, knowledge and length of service, having due regard
to the Company’s own business model and specific needs from time to time.
With the existing Board members coming from a variety of business and
professional background, the Company considers that the Board possesses
a balance of skills, experience, expertise and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business.
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Nomination procedures include identification and acknowledgement of
qualified individuals by the Nomination Committee and review and approval
of such nomination by the Board. The Nomination Committee will evaluate
potential candidates by considering factors such as professional expertise,
relevant experience, personal ethics and integrity.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Nomination Committee held
1 meeting to review the policies on senior management appointments and
promotion. The following table shows the attendance and members of the
Nomination Committee during the year ended 31 December 2021:
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No. of Nomination Committee
meetings attended/held:

Directors: oooooooooo
ooo oooooo
ZHENG Qingtao (Chairman) oowooo 1/1
LIU Hongwei ooo 1/1
WANG Ching ooo 1/1
YICK Wing Fat, Simon ooag 1/1
Tan Hongwei ooo 1/1

The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient resources to perform its
duties. The current duties and responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
are more specifically set out in its latest terms of reference, details of which
can be viewed on the website of the Company and the website of the Stock

Exchange.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) is
responsible for keeping detailed minutes of each meeting of the Board or
the Board committees including any dissenting views expressed by the
Directors, which should be available to all Directors for inspection. He is also
responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures comply with all applicable
laws, rules and regulations and advising the Board on corporate governance
matters. All agenda, relevant materials and document are required to be
sent out at least 3 days prior to the intended dates of the Board meetings or
meetings of the Board committees. It is the responsibility of the Company

0000000 - 000000000000.00 19
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Auditor’s Remuneration

The audit committee of the Board is responsible for making recommendation
to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
authorized external auditors and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditors, and any questions of
resignation or dismissal of the external auditors. The Group engaged
PricewaterhouseCoopers as its externals auditors. While KPMG acted
as the external auditor of the Company’s listed subsidiary China Singyes
New Materials Holding Limited. Details of the fees paid/payable to
PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PWC”) and KPMG during the year ended 31
December 2021 are as follows:
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Audit service — PWC
— Interim review and annual audit
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Audit service - KPMG

— Interim review and annual
audit of China Singyes New
Materials Holdings Limited
(“Singyes New Materials”)

RMB5,547,000
000 5,547,0000

RMB1,340,000
000 1,340,0000

Internal control and risk management

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board for the
Group’s system of internal control and risk management as well reviewing its
effectiveness an on-going basis, and, in particular, considering the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting
and financial reporting function, training programmes and budget. The
Board will conduct periodic review, at least annually, which cover all material
aspects, including financial, operational, risk management functions and
is in compliance with all relevant regulations and endeavor to enhance the
internal control and risk management measures of the Group. Such systems
are designed to manage the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Directors consider that the internal control systems of the Group is
effective and adequate.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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There is currently no internal audit function within the Group, the
effectiveness of the internal control of the Group is reviewed by the internal
audit department under Shuifa Group. Based on the understanding of the
Directors, no material internal control weaknesses have been identified.

The Group also appointed external independent professional advisors to
review the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system for the year
ended 31 December 2021. The Group is in the process of improving and
establishing the internal control manual to further enhance its internal control
and risk management system.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2021, which were prepared in accordance with applicable
accounting standards.

The reporting responsibility of the external auditor of the Company on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group are set out in the independent
auditor’s report on pages 77 to 91.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Communication with Shareholders

The Board recognises the importance of effective and on-going
communications with Shareholders and continues to act in the best interests
of the Company and its shareholders. The Company keeps Shareholders and
investors informed of its business performance and strategies by adopting
a transparent and timely disclosure policy which complies with the Listing
Rules and provides all Shareholders equal access to such information. The
Company also publishes all documents on the Company’s website.
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The annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) also provides a
forum for the Board to dialogue and interact with the Shareholders directly.
The Directors and the committee members are available to answer questions
during the AGM. Notice of AGM, annual report, financial statements and
related papers were posted to Shareholders for their consideration at least 20
clear business days prior to the AGM.

At each general meeting, the chairman of the meeting proposes individual
resolutions in respect of each substantially separate matter. All matters at
the Company’s general meetings are resolved by poll and the procedures for
conducting a poll will be explained at the meeting. Independent scrutineer
will be engaged to ensure all votes at general meeting are properly counted.
Poll vote results will be posted on the websites of the Company and HKEX in

a timely manner.

AGM proceedings and policies regarding Shareholders’ communication of the
Company are continually reviewed in the light of corporate governance best
practices.

Shareholders’ Rights

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the shareholders of the
Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the mandatory disclosure
requirements under Paragraph O of the Code which is effective from 1 April
2012.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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(a)

Sz febe N
XERAWmE

Convening of general meeting on requisition by shareholders (@) O00000000on
Members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than JooooooDOoooDooooo
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right jooDoomoooDoooooo
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have gooooobobooooDOooDooo
the right, by written requisition to the Company’s registered office in jodoooDoOoooooDooooo
Bermuda at 4th Floor North Cedar House, 41 Cedar Avenue, Hamilton [0 0 O O 4th Floor North Cedar House,
HM12, Bermuda and its principal office in Hong Kong at Unit 3108, 41 Cedar Avenue, Hamilton HM12,
31/F, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught BermudaOO OO O OOO0OOOOOOO
Road Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board or the Secretary 0oooooglesozoodoooong
of the Company, to require a special general meeting to be called gooo3lg3lesooooooon
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such goodooobDOoooooooooo
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within three (3) months Jooooooooooooooon
after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of Jo0ooooDooooooooooon
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the gooo@ooooooooooo
requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with the provisions gooooo@Eenooooooooo
of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. 000o00o0oooooooooogo
o0oooooooooo743)o0
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(b)  Procedures for putting forward proposals at a Shareholders’ meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, either any number
of the shareholders holding not tSO 2 18all 1 TfR.0lan one-twentieth (5%) ders h
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INVESTOR RELATION

During the period under review, there had been no significant change in the
Company'’s constitutional documents.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ENHANCEMENT

The Company has been introducing, and continues to introduce, measures
to comply with the Corporate Governance Code. Enhancing corporate
governance is not simply a matter of applying and complying with the
Corporate Governance Code of the Stock Exchange but about promoting and
developing an ethical and healthy corporate culture.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Board in respect of

0000000 - 000000000000.00 25
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Business overview

We are a professional renewable energy solution provider and building
contractor. Our main businesses are design, fabrication and installation
of curtain wall, green building and solar projects. Solar projects included
Building Integrated Photovoltaic System (“BIPV”) system, roof top solar
system and ground mounted solar system (collectively “Solar EPC”); we also
engaged in the manufacturing and sale of renewable energy goods. Our
BIPV system involves (i) the integration of photovoltaic technology into the
architectural design of buildings and structures and (ii) conversion of solar
energy into electricity for use. Our system allows the electricity generated
from solar panels to be connected to the power grid of a building and the
electricity generated from sun power will be consumed simultaneously.
No extra electricity storage cost is required. Apart from the above, we also
provide engineering design services and engage in the sale of curtain wall
materials. Leveraging on our track record and extensive experience in our
curtain wall business, we will further strengthen and develop our renewable
energy business in respect of BIPV systems and renewable energy products.
In 2020, the Group further diversified its business into Wind Power EPC, in
November 2021, our Group acquired approximately 45 MW of solar power
stations from Shuifa Group, details of which has been set out in the circular
of the Company on 19 November 2021. In the long run, we will aspire and
strive to grow into an enterprise with a focus on renewable energy business.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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2021 2020
ooooo ooooo
RMB RMB
ooooo ooooo
(Restated)
ooooo
Profit attributable to equity owners gooooooooooo
of the Company 221,410 310,632
Profit before gain on repurchase of gooooooooooon
senior notes 235,793 122,930
EBITDA* EBITDA* 786,476 663,903

Profit attributable to equity owners of the Company dropped by RMB89.2
million or 28.7%, such decrease was mainly caused by a one-off gain
of approximately RMB209.4 million arising from the repurchase and
cancellation of US$193 million of senior notes by the Company in 2020.

In 2021, due to the strong growth in Wind EPC, the repaid recover in curtain
walls and green building EPC business and the increase in income from
sale of electricity, a substantial improvement is recorded in both the EBITDA
and the profit before gain on repurchase of senior notes. EBITDA grew by
RMB122.6 million or 18.5%, and the profit before gain on repurchase of
senior notes grew by RMB112.9 million or 91.8%.

* Earning before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization.

ooooooooooooooooao
89,200,0000 O0 28.7%0 0 0 00O OO
oooooooooboooboooboo
1930000000 0000000000000
209,400,0000 0 00O

ooooO0oooOoOoOoOoEPCOBOOOOO
oOooOoooeEpPCOCOOOOOOOOOO
oooOOoOoOoOoEeBITbDAOODOOODOOO
ooooooooooooooooooo
122,600,0000 0 185%0 00000000
0000000o0oooo112,900,00000
91.8%0
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Curtain wall and green building business

In 2021, our curtain wall and green building construction business amounted
to RMB1,662.5 million, increased by RMB526.2 million or 46.3% as
compared to RMB1,136.3 million in 2020.

The economy inside Mainland China recovered rapidly in 2021, China is one
of the countries which the fastest recovery rate after the COVID-19 pandemic.
A strong growth has been recorded in three major main business areas —
Public work, commercial & industrial and high-end residential.

Solar EPC business

Solar EPC business dropped from RMB1,192 million in 2020 to RMB357.2
million in 2021. The material costs for solar EPC remained high in year 2021,
such increase was mainly due to price hikes in solar modules in response
to the material shortages and high transportation costs. The selling price for
polysilicon, increased substantially during 2021 as its supply could not keep
up with the downstream installation demand growth, moreover, the prices
for materials used in supporting structure for solar farm, such as aluminum,
were also on upward trends. Solar EPC business is not as profitable as what
the Group made before year 2018, we therefore squeezed our Solar EPC
business and shift our focus to Wind Power EPC in 2021.

Wind power EPC

In 2021, the Group involved in a number of sizable Wind Power EPC projects,
revenue in 2021 was approximately RMB3,086.2 million. Revenue from Wind
Power EPC increased by RMB1,708.8 million or 124.1%, such increase
was mainly because the Group won a mega size project in North-east part of
China during the year.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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Renewable energy goods

Apart from Solar EPC, we also produce different kind of renewable energy
goods. Renewable energy goods include wind power materials, solar
photovoltaic materials and solar thermal products. Solar thermal products
include air-source heat pump, solar heat collectors and solar heating system.
The increase the revenue from sale of renewable energy goods were mainly
came from the sale in wind EPC related products.

Conventional materials

The drop in sale in conventional materials in 2021 was mainly caused by
the drop in business in overseas market since majority of our Group’s target
markets were still in different level of lock-down because of the COVID-19
pandemic.

Thermal Supply

As announced by the Company on 11 September 2020, our Group also
acquired Zibo Qilu Chemical Industry Zone Thermal Co., from the controlling
shareholder of the Company, its main business is the supply of pipeline
steam inside a industrial zone. Total revenue recognized during the year was
approximately RMB268.6 million (2020: RMB188.7 million).

Self-develop solar and wing projects

At 31 December 2021, the Group had around 588.6 MW of grid connected
solar projects and 42.9 MW projects awaiting for grid connection.

As announced by the Company on 19 November 2021, our Group acquired
approximately 46MW of on-grid solar farm from Shandong Shuifa Clean
Energy Technology Co., Ltd, which is a fellow subsidiaries of our Company
under Shuifa Group.
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The following table sets out the Group’s self-invested solar and wind power
stations as at 31 December 2021.

gbooobooobooooobooobooooo
oooooooooocoooo

Pending
grid Under
Location On-grid connection Construction Total
oo oo ood ooad oad
MW MW MW MW
oo od ad ogd
Solar power stations goooo
Guangdong province oono 243 7 — 250
Northwest China ooooo 152.6 359 — 188.5
Shandong province ooo 45 — — 45
Golden Sun/Distributed Power oooooooog 146 — — 146
Overseas oo 2 — — 2
588.6 42.9 — 631.5
Wind power stations ooog
Northeast China ooogd — — 100 100
588.6 42.9 100 731.5

The Group'’s accumulated on-grid capacity was 588.6 megawatts (“MW”) at
31 December 2021, which comprised of 146 MW Golden Sun or distributed
power stations, and 440.6 MW ground-mounted solar farms inside Mainland
China and a 2 MW solar farm located overseas. The sale of electricity,
including tariff subsidy, amounted to RMB455.6 million in the year 2021
(2020: RMB374.6 million).

In second half of 2021, the Group started to build a 100MW wind farm in
Tongyu county in Jilin province, this project is expected to complete in 2022.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The following table set out the breakdown of revenue:

goooobd

g

ooooooood

2021 2020
ooooad ooooad
RMB million RMB million
gooooog gpooooo
(Restated)
Jpoogdo
Curtain walls and green buildings goooooad
— Public work —oogo 240.3 162.4
— Commercial and industrial — oo 937.6 646.0
— High-end residential —Qoooo 484.6 327.9
1,662.5 1,136.3
Solar EPC googEPC
— Public work —oooo — 24.8
— Commercial and industrial —0a 357.2 1,167.2
357.2 1,192.0
Wind Power EPC 00 EPC
— industrial and commercial —0oooao 3,086.2 1,377.4
Total construction contracts oooooo 5,105.9 3,705.7
Sale of goods oood
— Conventional materials —oooo 171.3 2134
— Renewable energy goods —Oooooooo 272.8 120.0
— New materials —oog 131.1 99.0
— Energy related products —oooooa 35.0 857.1
Total sale of goods goooooo 610.2 1,289.5
Sale of electricity ooog 455.6 374.6
Thermal supply ooog 268.6 188.7
Rendering of design and other services oopooooooo 63.1 20.0
6,503.4 LrsyieRs)

H-LEEH-=LH-H
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Gross profit and gross profit margin gooooo
2021 2020
ooooad ooooa
RMB million %  RMB million %
ogooooa goooooo
(Restated)
ooooo
Construction contracts oooad
— Curtain walls and green — oo
buildings ooooo 142.0 8.5 138.0 12.1
— Solar EPC —QOoogEPC 8.2 2.3 151.7 12.7
— Wind EPC — GO agEPC 481.3 15.6 260.3 18.9
631.5 12.4 550.0 14.8
Sale of goods ooog
— Conventional materials —[0oooo 27.8 16.2 b3.1 24.9
— Renewable energy goods —Oooooooo 16.7 6.1 13.8 11.5
— New materials —Qooad 24.8 18.9 23.6 23.9
— Energy related products —oooooa 13.9 39.7 9.5 1.1
83.2 13.6 100.0 7.8
Sale of electricity gooa 270.5 59.4 197.8 52.8
Rendering of design and oooad
other services gpooogo 35.0 55.5 7.9 39.3
Thermal supply gooa 54.8 20.4 58.7 31.1
Total gross profit and gross ooo
profit margin gooo 1,075.0 16.5 914.4 16.4

oooooooobOOooooooano
5,578,500,0000 O 0O O O O 924,900,0000 O
16.6% 0000000000 6,503,400,000
0000000000000 0 914,400,000
000000 160,600,00000 17.6%000
0oo0000001,075000,00000

The Group’s revenue increased by RMB924.9 million or 16.6%, from
RMB5,578.5 million in 2020 to RMB6,503.4 million in 2021. Gross profit
increased by RMB160.6 million or 17.6%, from RMB914.4 million in 2020
to RMB1,075 million in 2021.
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Revenue and gross profit contribution from different business doodooooooooooa

sectors:
Revenue split oooo
2021 2020
oooood ooooo
RMB million %  RMB million %
gooooao oooooo
(Restated)
goooo
Conventional business! oooot 1,896.9 29.2 1,369.7 24.6
Energy business? gooao? 4,475.4 68.8 4,109.8 73.6
New material business goooo 131.1 2.0 99.0 1.8
6,503.4 100.0 5,578.5 100.0
Gross profit split oooo
2021 2020
goooo goooo
RMB million %  RMB million %
gooooo gooooo
(Restated)
ooooo
Conventional business! googt 204.8 19.1 199.0 21.8
Energy business? ooooe 845.4 78.6 691.8 75.6
New material business ooooo 24.8 2.3 23.6 2.6
1,075.0 100.0 914.4 100.0
1. Included curtain wall and green building construction contracts, sale of 1. Jdo0o0ooooooooooooooo

conventional materials and rendering of design and other services.

oooooooooo

2. Included solar EPC construction contracts, sale of renewable energy goods, sale 2% 0°0 @ EHEFERC RN S e ST [
of energy related products, sale of electricity and tariff subsidy, wind power EPC 0 O BEe-HELEL RT3 30 B NS

and thermal supply.

B E/E 0 “ERE A mEE
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Other income/other gain (losses)

Other income/other gain(losses) during the year mainly came from deferred
income and operating lease rental income; while other income and gain in
2020 mainly came from the gain on repurchase and cancellation of senior
notes.

Administrative, selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses increased by RMB7.9 million or 10%, the
increase in selling and distribution expense is in line with the increase in
revenue of the Group.

Administrative expenses slightly decreased by RMB6.6 million of 1.6% as
compared with the year 2020.

Finance costs

The finance costs of the Group in 2021 and 2020 are summerised as per
below:

goooooobmooo

ooDOooO0oo0OO0o0O00moboOooooOo
oooooooooooooooocoooo
oooooooocoooooooocoooo
ooooooDo

goooboooooo

ooooooooOoooo7,.90000000
loooooOooo0oooooooOoooon
ooooo

dodooooooooooooooda
6,600,0000 0 1.6%0

goood

gbooobooooboooboooobooo
ooooo

For the year ended 31 December
gooo0oooooooo

2021 2020

goooo goooo

RMB’000 RMB’000

oooon ooooo
(Restated)
oooon

Finance cost: ooooo

— Interest on bank and other loans —Q0O0ooooooo 169,805 195,703
— Interest on senior notes —[Q0ooooo 91,573 146,660
— Interest on amounts due to related parties —Q000o0oooooo 78,312 38,903
— Interest on lease liabilities —0oooooo 835 726
— Others —0a 1,317 11,110
341,842 393,102
Less: Foreign exchange gain, net goooooooao (34,068) (142,863)
Interest capitalised ooooo (14,827) (20,041)
(48,895) (162,904)

Total finance costs gooooo 292,947 230,198
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Total finance costs before foreign exchange gain and interest capitalized
in 2021 amounted to RMB341.8 million, representing a drop of RMB51.3
million or 13.0%. Such decrease mainly came from the drop in interest
on senior notes, which was mainly because our Group repurchased and
cancelled approximately US$191.6 million of senior notes in first half of year
2020; interest on bank and other loan dropped from RMB195.7 million in
2020 to RMB169.8 million in 2021, this was mainly due to the decrease in
average loan balance during the year.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense during the year included RMB114.5 million of taxation
charge (2020: RMB116.8 million) and RMB60.2 million of deferred tax credit
(2020: RMB234.2 million).

The taxation charges mainly represented the income tax provision for
subsidiaries inside Mainland China. No deferred tax charges on dividend
withholding tax based on 5% of the net profits in the operating subsidiaries
located inside Mainland China were provided for both years.

Current ratio

The current ratio, being current assets over current liabilities as at 31
December 2021 was 1.32 (31 December 2020: 1.53). This is our Group’s
strategy to maintain a health current ratio in order to meet short term
obligations of the Group.

H-LEEH-=LH-H

00000000000000000000
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The assessment of the recoverability of the receivables is important for the
management to forecast the available liquid resources of the Group.

Management assessed the impairment of trade receivables and contract
assets based on expected credit losses methodology. The impairment of
individually significant trade receivables and contract assets were assessed
on an individual basis based on management’s estimates of the discounted
future cash flows. Individual insignificant trade receivables and contract
assets balances were grouped based on their credit risk characteristics for
overall evaluation. The collective impairment provision was determined by
management based on historical loss experience, taking into considerations of
forward-looking macroeconomic data, industry risk and other circumstances.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over a
period of 60 months before the balance sheet date and the corresponding
historical credit losses experienced within this period. The historical loss
rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the
receivables. The Group has identified the CPl and GDP to be the most
relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based on
expected changes in these factors.

Apart from that, the Group also get liquid fundings through bank borrowings,
senior notes and advances from holding company. The repayment schedules
of the above borrowings are also being closely monitored by the management
of the Group.

Liquidity risk and borrowings

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and
cash equivalent and the availability of funding through an adequate amount
of committed credit facilities. The Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding
by keeping committed credit lines available.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s liquidity reserve on the
basis of expected cash flow.

H-LEEH-=LH-H
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The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity 00o0oDoooooooooooooog
groupings based on the remaining period from the balance sheet date to doodoo0ooDOOoooOooooooooa
the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the dooodoo0ooDoDOoooooooooooa

contractual undiscounted cash flows.

agd
Within Over
1 year 1-2years  2-5years 5 years Total
ooo oooo oooo oooo oo

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
goooo OOoOooo oOooOoo0 DboOoOOO0 [boooo

At 31 December 2021 ooooooooooooo
Senior notes oooo 1,551,266 - - - 1,551,266
Borrowings oo 823,630 398,842 1,798,714 1,776,054 4,797,240
Lease liabilities gooo 2,981 12,347 2,195 7,521 25,044
Trade and bills payables ooooooooooo 2,180,962 - - - 2,180,962
Other payables and accruals goooooooooo 1,572,038 - - - 1,572,038
Within QOver
1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years Total
ooo oooo oooo oooo oo
RMB00O0 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'O0O ~ RMB'O00  RMB'000
goooo ooOooo oOoooo oOoOooo [+oooo
At 31 December 2020 (Restated) 0oo0000OOOOO0O0moDnoo
Senior notes oooo 89969 1,561,266 - - 1641235
Borrowings oo 1,351,253 393,350 933721 1008233 3,686,557
Lease liabilities oooo 2,268 5191 4,766 32,839 45,064
Trade and bills payables 00o00000oooo 1923871 — — — 1923871
QOther payables and accruals pooooooooaon 1,747 478 — — — 1,747 478
Capital expenditures good

Capital expenditures of the Group amounted to RMB948.9 million for the oooboooooOooooooood
year (2020: RMB593.0 million), it mainly included the capital expenditure 094890000000 0 0 0 000 00O
incurred in wind power and solar photovoltaic power stations, as well as the 593,000,0000 M 0 0OO0O0O0O0O0DODOOO

acquisition of subsidiaries and investment properties.
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Dividend

The Directors of the Company recommend payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.020 per share (2020: HK$0.028 per share). The actual dividend
payout ratio in each year will depend on the actual performance of the Group,
the general industry and economic environment.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had about 1,700 employees. Employee
salary and other benefit expenses increased to RMB246.4 million in the year
2021 compared with RMB163.5 million in the year 2020. It was generally
because of the drop in number of employees, average salary and bonus.
The Group’s remuneration policies are formulated on the performance of
individual employees, which will be reviewed regularly every year. Apart from
provident fund scheme (according to the provisions of Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes for Hong Kong employees) or the state-managed retirement
pension scheme (for Mainland China employees) and medical insurance,
discretionary bonus are also awarded to employees according to the

assessment of individual performance.

RN

O0O00opoooooocooooooonoo.020
oooooooooooo28OO0monO
gbooooooocoooooooboooo
oooooooooooono
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loo0o0O0OOO0O000O0O0O00O0000
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The table below sets forth information regarding our Directors:

' § DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

obooooooboonbo

Name Age Position oo oo oo

Zheng Qingtao 48 Chairman and Executive Director ooo 480 goooooao

Liu Hongwei 58 Vice-Chairman and Executive Director oono 580 gopboooooo

Chen Fushan 47 Executive Director ooo 470 oooo

Wang Dongwei 40 Executive Director ooo 400 gooa

Xie Wen 58 Non-executive Director o O 580 oooono

Li Li 43 Non-executive Director o O 430 ooooo

Wang Ching 67 Independent non-executive Director o O 670 goooooao

Yick Wing Fat, Simon 64 Independent non-executive Director oono 640 gopbooooo

Tan Hongwei 62 Independent non-executive Director ooo 620 goooooao
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS oooo

Mr. Zheng Qingtao, aged 48, has been appointed as the Chairman and an
executive Director of our Company on 28 November 2019. He has taken
charge of the Group’s Party building, strategic development and the overall
work of the Board. He has been the assistant to general manager of Shuifa
Group Co., Ltd. (DO O OO OO 0O) and general secretary of party branch*
(0D0O00O00), chairman and general manager of Shuifa Energy Group
Limited (DO OODOODOOODO) since March 2017. From February 2014
to February 2017 and from November 2012 to February 2014, before that
Mr. Zheng served as the general manager and chairman of Shandong Shuifa
Tianyuan Water Group Co., Lid. (DO DO OQOOODOOODOOO), and
Liangshan County Water Development Co., Ltd.* (00000000 0O0O0O)
and Shandong Shengdu Water Development Co., Ltd.* (DO OO0 OO0OO
00O 0O0), respectively. Mr. Zheng obtained his bachelor’'s degree in political
thoughts education (0 0 0 0 0 0O) at Qufu Normal University* (D 0O 0O
0 0) in the PRC in 2003 and has approximately 20 years of experience in
corporate senior management and approximately 20 years of experience in
the energy industry.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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Mr. Liu Hongwei, aged 58, is the Vice-chairman and an executive Director
of our Company, responsible for assisting the strategic development and
capital planning of the Group. He founded our Group since August 1995.
After obtaining a bachelor’s degree in engineering in July 1986 from Wuhan
Industrial University, now known as Wuhan University of Technology, majoring
in inorganic materials engineering, Mr. Liu worked at the Shaanxi Glass
Factory, as a technician until 1989. From 1989 to 1991, Mr. Liu was the
director of production department at the Zhuhai Glass Factory. From 1991
to 1995, Mr. Liu Hongwei was the manager of the operation department
of Zhuhai Singyes Safety Glass. In 1995, Zhuhai Singyes Green Building
Technology Co., Ltd was established with Mr.Liu acted as the general
manager. Since November 2003, Mr. Liu has been an executive Director
of our Company. Mr. Liu is a Senior Engineer in respect of construction
materials. He has more than 30 years’ experience in the curtain wall
engineering sector and more than 20 years’ experience in the photovoltaic
application sector.

Mr. Liu is also a director and a 53% shareholder of Strong Eagle Holdings
Ltd. which holds 202,038,750 shares of the Company as at the date of
this report (representing approximately 8.01% of the issued share capital
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the listed issuer under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures

Ordinance.
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Mr. Chen Fushan, aged 47, has been appointed as an executive Director of
our Company on 28 November 2019. He has been a deputy general manager
of Shuifa Energy Group Limited (00O OODOODOOODO) since 2019.
During August 2014 to July 2018, Mr. Chen took the positions of marketing
director, member of party committee (O O [0 0 ) and assistant to director of
the Heze branch (0 O 0O O) and director of the Yucheng branch (0O O
) of Shanghai Pudong Development Bank. From June 2014 to July 2014,
he served as the general manager of risk management at the Heze branch
(0DODO0O) of Laishang Bank (O O 0O O). Mr. Chen was the director of the
Yucheng branch (O O 0O 0O) and operational director of the Heze branch
(0 O0O0O) from May 2011 to June 2014 and from November 2010 to May
2011, respectively, both at Laishang Bank (O O 00 O ). He worked at China
Construction Bank, as director of the Dan County branch (0 O 0O O) from
January 2007 to October 2010 and as deputy director of the Yucheng branch
(0DODO0O) from February 2006 to December 2006. During August 1994
to January 2006, Mr. Chen served as an international business settlement
officer, savings officer, officer and deputy manager of the credit department
and customer service executive of the Heze branch (0 OO O) of China
Construction Bank. Mr. Chen graduated from Shandong Economics College*
(D O0OO0O0O) (currently known as Shandong University of Finance and
Economics) with a major in international finance in the PRC in 2001 and has
approximately 25 years of experience in audit, financial management, finance
and initial public offerings etc.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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Mr. Wang Dongwei, aged 40, has been appointed as an executive Director
of our Company on 28 November 2019 and was appointed as the president
of the Group and fully responsible for the day-to-day operation management
and safety production of the Group. He has been a deputy general manager
of Shuifa Energy Group Limited (00O O0OOOOODO) from June 2018
to October 2019. From May 2018 to June 2018, Mr. Wang was the assistant
to general manager at Shandong ENN Energy Development Co., Ltd.* (O O
00000 O0O00Oon), and from November 2014 to April 2018, he was a
standing deputy general manager of Jinan ENN Combustion Gas Co., Ltd.* (O
0000000D00). He served as the chief accountant of Qingdao ENN
Jiaocheng Combustion Gas Co., Ltd.* (DO O0OOOOOOOOO) from
March 2011 to October 2014. Mr. Wang worked at Laiyang ENN Combustion
Gas Co., id.* (DO O ODOOO0OODO) from March 2008 to February 2011
and Qingdao ENN Jiaonan Combustion Gas Co., Ltd.* (DO OO OO0 OO
0 000d) from April 2006 to February 2008, as an executive of the finance
department in both companies. From August 2004 to March 2006, Mr. Wang
took the position of a supervising accountant of the finance department
of Chucheng ENN Gas Combustion Co., Ltd* (D00 OOOOOOO),
and from July 2001 to July 2004, he was an accountant of Zibo Huaqing
Fire Resistant Materials Company Limited* (00 OO0 OO0 OOOO0O).
Mr. Wang obtained his master’s degree in business administration at
Zhongnan University of Economics and Law* (0 0 00 00 0O O) in the PRC
in 2012 and his bachelor’'s degree in accounting at Shandong Economics
College* (DO OOOO) (currently known as Shandong University of
Finance and Economics) in the PRC in 2003 and has approximately 15 years

of senior management experience in the energy field.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Xie Wen, aged 58, has been appointed as a non-executive Director of the
Group since 17 February 2022. Xie Wen graduated from Zhengzhou Textile
Engineering College* (00 O OO OO) in 1987. Mr. Wen was certified as
a Level 1 Project Manager by the PRC Ministry of Construction in 2002,
certified as a senior engineer by the Guangdong Province Personnel
Bureau in 2004, and awarded as a registered constructor by the Ministry of
Construction in 2008. He has nearly 30 years of experience in green building
sector and has nearly 20 years of experience in the photovoltaic power
application sector. Xie Wen is a director and a 13% shareholder of Strong
Eagle Holdings Ltd.

LI Li, aged 43, has been appointed as a non-executive Director of the Group
in May 2021. LI Li graduated from Chongging University (0 O O O ) in 2003
with a bachelor’s degree in finance. From January 2020 to present, she has
been a senior manager of the finance department of Shuifa Group Co., Ltd.
(DOoDOooogo). Ll Liis a senior economist and holds a qualification
certificate of secretary to board of directors awarded by the Shanghai Stock
Exchange. She has extensive experience in securities affairs management
and asset management of listed companies.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Wang Ching, aged 67, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of our Company in December 2008. Dr. Wang has over 20 years’
managerial experience in investment banking, securities, treasury and asset
management in the United States, Hong Kong, Taiwan and the PRC. He
was the managing director of Shanghai International Asset Management
(HK) Co. Ltd. (a licensed corporation registered with Hong Kong Securities
and Futures Commission), and he was the executive director of Shanghai
International Shanghai Growth Investment Limited (a company listed on the
Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange). In addition, Dr. Wang is also
currently an independent non-executive director of Minth Group Limited and
Luen Thai Holdings Limited (both companies are listed on the Main Board of
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, as well as are independent third parties of
the Company and affiliates of the Company). Dr. Wang obtained his master
degree in business administration from the University of Houston and Ph.D.
in finance from Columbia University in the city of New York.
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Yick Wing Fat, Simon, aged 64, is our independent non-executive director
and chairman of the audit committee. Mr. Yick holds a Bachelor’s degree in
Business Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong, majoring
in Accounting. He is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in
England. Mr. Yick has over 30 years of experience in audit, direct investment,
investment banking and corporate advisory services.

Mr. Yick also serves as an independent non-executive director and chairman
of the audit committee of Shenzhen Neptunus Interlong Bio-technique Co.,
Ltd. and Shanghai International Shanghai Growth Investment Limited (both
are listed on the Stock Exchange). Mr. Yick is an independent non-executive
director and chairman of audit committee and remuneration committee,
member of nomination committee of Modern Media Holdings Limited (listed
on Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 72).

Tan Hongwei, aged 62, is our non-executive Director and also a member of
the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee and the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. He is a professor and a doctoral supervisor at the
School of Mechanical and Energy Engineering of Tongji University, a doctoral
supervisor at the School of Architecture and Urban Planning of Tongji
University and the interdisciplinary double-engaged responsible professor
at the United Nations Environment Programme- School of Environmental
Sustainability of Tongji University. He is also the key researcher of Climate
Change Key Laboratory, the core member of the first class academic peak
team (building technology) of Tongji University, the deputy director of the
Tongji University Green Building and New Energy Research Center, and
the director of the Tongji International Green Industry Innovation Center. Dr.
Tan graduated from the Department of Architecture of Tokyo University with
a doctoral degree in 1995. Dr. Tan has over 18 years of experience in the
teaching and research in respect of energy-saving building technologies,
application technology of renewable energy in buildings, building energy
efficiency supervision platform technology, urban low-carbon energy planning
technology, urban construction environment technology and other fields.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wang Dongwei has been appointed as an executive Director of the Group
since November 2019, and he was appointed as the president of the Group
in January 2022. For further details on Mr. Wang Dongwei, please refer to the
Directors’ information above.

Zhang Chao, aged 50, is the deputy secretary to the Communist Party
Committee of the Group, and is responsible for the investment, merger
& acquisition and operation and management of the green building, new
materials and clean energy sectors. Zhang Chao graduated from Qigihaer
Railway Transportation Employee University majoring in civil construction in
July 1995, and he joined our Group in December 2002. Zhang Chao was
certified as a Construction Appraiser in 2003, and he was awarded as a
registered constructor in 2007. He has 20 years of experience in the curtain
wall engineering sector and nearly 20 years of experience in the photovoltaic

power application sector.

Wang Bin, aged 46, has been appointed as the secretary of the discipline
committee of the Group in May 2021, and is responsible for discipline
inspection and supervision. Wang Bin graduated from Qingdao Ocean
University (O O O O 0O O) (currently known as the Ocean University of China)
majoring in international trade in July 1999. From April 2021 to present,
Wang Bin has been the committee member of the Communist Party and
secretary of the discipline committee of Shuifa Energy Group Limited (0 O O
O0O0O000O00), and has extensive experience in corporate management,
party building and discipline inspection.

Li Dezhu, aged 44, was appointed as the co-chief financial officer of the
Group in January 2021, and is responsible for financing management, fund
coordination, financial management etc.. Li Dezhu graduated from China
Agricultural University with a bachelor’s degree in accounting in 2010 and
obtained a master’s degree in business administration from Southwest
University in 2016. Li Dezhu is a senior accountant, senior economist,
national high-end accounting talent and a member of Certified Management
Accountant, with nearly 20 years of experience in corporate financial
management.
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Guo Yangyang, aged 39, is the co-chief financial officer of the Group,
and is responsible for fund coordination, accounting and auditing, asset
management, financial management etc.. Guo Yangyang graduated from the
accounting discipline of the China University of Mining and Technology in
June 2005. He joined the Group in July 2006 as an intermediate accountant
and has been the chief financial officer of the Group from October 2016 to
present. He has nearly 20 years of experience in accounting and auditing,

financing management and financial management.

Sun Jinli, aged 58, is the vice-president of the Group, and is responsible for
the Group’s technology R&D and technology innovation. Sun Jinli graduated
from Wuhan Industrial University (currently known as the Wuhan University
of Technology) with a bachelor’s degree majoring in inorganic materials
engineering in July 1986. He joined the Group in August 1995. Sun Jinli was
certified as a Level 1 Project Manager in 2002 and awarded as a registered
constructor in 2007, and he has nearly 30 years of experience in the green
building sector. Sun Jinli is a director and a 15% shareholder of Strong Eagle
Holdings Ltd. (the second largest shareholder of the Group).

Zhou Qing, aged 46, is the vice-president of the Group, and is responsible
for the operation and management of the clean energy sector. Zhou Qing
graduated from Nanchang University (0 0O O O) in 1998, majoring in power
systems and automation, and joined the Group in May 2009. Zhou Qing was
certified as a senior engineer in 2017 and has over 20 years of experience in
power engineering and electrical engineering, as well as operation of large-
scale photovoltaic and wind power project.
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Luo Duo, aged 43, is the chief engineer of the Group, and is responsible
for The Group’s standard preparation, R&D management, transformation of
achievements and other relevant work. Luo Duo graduated from Qingdao
Construction Engineery College (currently known as Qingdao University of
Technology) majoring in construction engineering in 2001, and she joined
the Group in July 2001. Luo Duo was certified as a registered structural
engineer in 2005 and was certified as a senior engineer in 2008. Luo Duo
participated in organizing various national, provincial and municipal-level
scientific research projects, such as “US-China Clean Energy Research
Center Building Efficiency Project (000000000000 DODODOOO
), the National Key R&D Programs of the “13th Five-Year Plan” under the
Ministry of Science and Technology of the PRC — the “Green building and
Industrialization of building” key project, the national 863 Program as well as
Technology Support Plan under the “12th Five-Year Plan” of the PRC. She
has obtained 37 national patents, published over 30 pieces of professional
theses in national professional publications, participated in the writing of 13
books, and participated in setting up more than 40 national and industry
standards.

YU Chon Man, aged 44, he has been the qualified accountant and company
secretary of our Company since 2008. He is responsible for financial
reporting and general investor affairs of our Company. He has over 20 years
of experience in financial accounting. Mr. Yu is a fellow members of both of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants. Prior to joining us, he had approximately
seven years of working experience with international audit firms and was
mainly responsible for financial auditing, internal control reporting and
compliance advisory. He graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with a bachelor’s degree (Hons) in accountancy in 2001.

Mr. Yu also serves as an independent non-executive director and chairman of
audit committee of Luxxu Group Limited (stock code: 1327).

To the best knowledge of the Company, there are no financial, business or
other material/relevant relationships among members of the Board and the
senior management officers.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. YU Chon Man, is our company secretary. For further details regarding Mr.
Yu, please see the paragraph headed “Senior Management” above.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EXEEREE

The Directors are pleased to present the annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on 24 October 2003 as an
exempted company with limited liability. The registered office of the Company
is located at 4th Floor, North Cedar House, 41 Cedar Avenue, Hamilton HM
12, Bermuda. The Company has established a principal place of business
in Hong Kong at Unit 3108, 31st Floor, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak
Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong, and was registered
with the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong as an oversea company under
Part XI of the Companies Ordinance on 29 August 2008. Mr. Yu Chon Man
has been appointed as the authorised representative of the Company for the
acceptance of service of process and notices on behalf of the Company in

Hong Kong.

As the Company is incorporated in the Bermuda, the operation of the
Company is subject to the Companies Law and to its constitution comprising
a memorandum of association and the bye-laws.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Group
are set out on pages 40 to 48 of this report. Save as disclosed in this report,
there are no other changes to the Directors’ information as required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is a
professional renewable energy system integrator and building contractor, it is
principally engaged in the design, fabrication and installation of conventional
curtain walls and solar projects. Solar projects included building integrated
photovoltaic (“BIPV”) system, roof top solar system and ground mounted
solar system (collectively “Solar EPC”). The BIPV system involves (i) the
integration of photovoltaic technology into the architectural design of
buildings and structures and (ii) conversion of solar energy into electricity
for use. In addition, the Group also engages in the production and sale of
renewable energy goods, including smart grid system, and solar thermal
system. In 2020, the Group further diversified its business into Wind Power
EPC, our Group acquired Zibo Qilu Chemical Industry Zone Thermal Co., Ltd
from the controlling shareholder of the Company, after this acquisition, the
Group entered into pipeline thermal supply business.

The Group’s principal operating market is in Mainland China.

Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 1 to the financial statements. There were no significant changes in the
nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group’s top five customers are the main contractors of various wind
and solar farm investors. In aggregate, the largest and top five customers
contributed approximately 31.7% and 40.0% of the Group’s total revenue in
2021 respectively.

The Group currently outsources part of the construction works for various
sub-contractors in the PRC, as well as sourcing solar penals, wind turbine,
aluminium from suppliers inside the PRC. In 2021, the top five suppliers are
wind farm project suppliers, and the largest and five largest suppliers were
about 23.1% and 48.8% of the Group’s total cost of sale in 2021 respectively.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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At no time during the year have the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these
major suppliers and/or customers.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries which principally affect
the results as at 31 December 2021 are set out in note 13 to the financial
statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND DIVIDENDS

The profits of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 and the
Company’s and the Group’s financial positions as at the same date are set out
in the financial statements on pages 92 to 264. The Directors recommend
the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 of
HK$0.020 per share (2020: HK$0.028 per share).

There was no arrangement under which a shareholder of the Company has
waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserve of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 96 to 97 of the annual report and in note 38 to the financial statements
respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Final dividend amounting to approximately HK$58,748,000 was declared by
reduction of capital reserve, as at 31 December 2021, the Company’s reserve
available for distribution calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
applicable law of Bermuda, amount to approximately RMB23,252,000. A
resolution will be submitted in the annual general meeting of the Company to
transfer RMB70,000,000 from the share premium account to the contributed

surplus.

INTEREST BEARING BANK LOANS

Particulars of interest bearing bank loans of the Group as at 31 December
2021 are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of acquisitions and other movements in property, plant and equipment
are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in note 24 to the financial statements. The Company and its
subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem any listed securities of the
Company.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the shares of the
Company.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last 5 financial years is set out on page 4 of the annual report.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2021

There has been no material events that are subject to disclosure after the
year ended 31 December 2021 to the date of this report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zheng Qingtao (Chairman)
Mr. Liu Hongwei (Vice chairman)
Mr. Chen Fushan

Mr. Wang Dongwei

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Xie Wen (appointed on 17 February 2022)

Ms. Li Li (appointed on 21 May 2021)
Ms. Wang Suhui (resigned on 17 February 2022)
Mr. Zhang Jianyuan (resigned on 21 May 2021)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Dr. Wang Ching

Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon

Dr. Tan Hongwei

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws of the Company, Mr. Liu
Hongwei, Dr. Tan Hongwei and Mr. Zhang Jianyuan are required to retire
by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Each of the above
Directors will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy for the Directors and senior management members
of the Group was based on their individual performance as well as market
trends and practices. Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out
in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

The emoluments paid to the senior management (excluding the Directors)
during the year ended 31 December 2021 were within the following bands:

goog
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Number of
Senior Management

Bands oo ooooooo
RMB100,001 to RMB1,000,000 000 100,00100000 1,000,0000

RMB1,000,001 to RMB2,000,000 000 1,000,00100000 2,000,0000 6
Total: aooad 7

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. Zheng Qingtao, Mr. Wang Dongwei and Mr. Chen Fushan, the
executive Directors, has signed a letter of appointment with the Company
for a term of three years commencing from 28 November 2019 unless
terminated in accordance with the terms therein. Under the terms of the
letter of appointment, the appointment may be terminated by not less than
three months’ prior written notice or otherwise served by either party on the
other.

Mr. Liu Hongwei, an executive Director, has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from 13 January
2012, and will be automatically renewed for another three years upon expiry.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021

gogooo

gboooboooooboooboooobooo
oooooooocooooooobcoooo
gboooboooooooboooobooo
goooboooobooobooooboo
oooooooocoooooooobcoooo
uboooboooboooao

ggooocooooooboboboooooo
gboooboooobooobooooboo
ooooooooocoooooo



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EXEEREE

Each of Mr. Xie Wen and Ms. Li Li, the non-executive Directors, have
entered into a service contract with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 17 February 2022 and 21 May 2021, respectively. Under
the terms of the service contract, the appointment may be terminated by not
less than one month’s prior written notice or otherwise served by either party
on the other.

Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon and Dr. Wang Ching, the independent non-
executive Directors, were appointed for a term of three years from 19
December 2008. Dr. Tan Hongwei, the independent non-executive director,
was appointed for a term of three years from 18 April 2018. Their service
contracts will be automatically renewed for another three years upon expiry.

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years and in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

None of the Directors has a service agreement with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The remuneration of directors are determined by the remuneration committee
of the Company and by reference to the remuneration policies of other

companies in similar capacity and the experience of the directors.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 19 December 2008, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”). Under the Share Option Scheme, the Board may at
its discretion, offer eligible persons (being any Director or employee (whether
full-time or part-time), consultant or advisors of the Group who in the sole
discretion of the Board has contributed or will contribute to the Group) (the
“Eligible Persons”) who the Board may in its absolute discretion select to
subscribe for such number of Shares as the Board may determine at a
subscription price determined in accordance with the Share Option Scheme.
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Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentive or reward
to Eligible Persons for their contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote
the interests of, the Group and for such other purposes as the Board may
approve from time to time.

Total number of Shares available under the Share Option
Scheme

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme is 18,026,332
shares, representing 1.00% of the Company’s issued share capital as at the
date of this report. Pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the
exercise price of and/or the number of Shares subject to the outstanding
Share Options are required to be adjusted as a result of a rights issue in
July 2016. In accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme and
the supplementary guidance issued by the Stock Exchange on 5 September
2005 regarding adjustment of share options under Rule 17.03(13) of the
Listing Rules, the exercise price of and the number of Shares subject to the
outstanding Share Options granted on 22 May 2015 has been adjusted with
effect from 20 July 2016:
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Exercise price

Number of
Shares
subject to the
outstanding
Share Options

After Adjustments
ooad

Exercise price

Number of
Shares
subject to the
outstanding
Share Options

per Share oooo per Share oooo

Date of grant og oooooo ood gopoooo
good ogd oood ogd ogood
HK$ HK$

oo oo

22 May 2015 ooooooooooo 11.70 6,026,332 11.65 6,026,332
5 April 2017 000o0ooooo 3.55 12,000,000 N/A 12,000,000

ood
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Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Participant

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) to each Eligible Person in any 12-month period up
to the date of grant shall not exceed 1.0% of the shares in issue as at the
date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this 1.0% limit shall
be subject to the issue of a circular by the Company and the approval of our
Shareholders in general meeting with such Eligible Persons and his associate
(as defined in the Listing Rules) abstaining from voting and the number and
terms (including the subscription price) of such options being fixed before
such general meeting and other requirements prescribed under the Listing
Rules from time to time.

Time of exercise of option

There is no general requirement that an option must be held for any
minimum period before it can be exercised but the Board is empowered to
impose at its discretion any such minimum period at the time of grant of any
particular option. The Board is currently unable to determine such minimum
period. The date of grant of any particular option is the date on which the
offer relating to such option is duly accepted by the grantee in accordance
with the Share Option Scheme. An option may be exercised according to the
terms of the Share Option Scheme and the offer in whole or in part by the
grantee (or his personal representatives) before its expiry by giving notice
in writing to our Company stating that the option is to be exercised and the
number of Shares in respect of which it is exercised provided that the number
of Shares shall be equal to the size of a board lot for dealing in Shares on
the Stock Exchange or an integral multiple thereof. Such notice must be
accompanied by a remittance for the full amount of the subscription price for
the Shares in respect of which the notice is given. The period during which
an option may be exercised will be determined by the Board at its absolute
discretion, save that no option may be exercised more than 10 years from
the date of grant. No option may be granted more than 10 years after the
date of approval of the Share Option Scheme. Subject to earlier termination
by the Company in general meeting, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid
and effective for a period of 10 years from the date of adoption of the Share
Option Scheme by Shareholders by resolution at a general meeting.
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Price of Shares

The subscription price for a share in respect of any particular option granted
under the Share Option Scheme (which shall be payable upon exercise of
the option) shall be such price as the Board shall determine, save that such
price must not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of offer
to grant option, which must be a business day; (ii) the average of the closing
prices of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of offer to grant
option (provided that the new issue price shall be used as the closing price
for any business day falling within the period before the listing of the shares
where our Company has been listed for less than five business days as at
the date of offer to grant option); and (iii) the nominal value of a Share. A
consideration of RMB1.00 is payable on acceptance of an offer of the grant
of an option.

Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Company, by resolution in general meeting, or the Board may at any
time terminate the operation of the Share Option Scheme and in such event
no further option will be offered but in all other respects the provisions of
the Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect and options
granted prior to such termination shall continue to be valid and exercisable
in accordance with the Share Option Scheme. The Share Option Scheme
was terminated on 19 December 2018 and the share options already granted
continue to be effective till 21 May 2027.

NEW SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a new share option scheme at its annual general
meeting on 4 June 2018 (the “New Share Option Scheme”). No Share Option
have been granted under such scheme.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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Participants of the New Share Option Scheme

Under the New Share Option Scheme, the Board may at its discretion, offer
eligible persons (being any Director or employee (whether full-time or part-
time), consultants or suppliers of the Group who in the sole discretion of the
Board has contributed or will contribute to the Group) (the “Eligible Person(s)
of the New Share Option Scheme”) who the Board may in its absolute
discretion select to subscribe for such number of shares as the Board may
determine at a subscription price determined in accordance with the New
Share Option Scheme.

Purpose of the New Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the New Share Option Scheme is to provide incentive
or reward to Eligible Persons of the New Share Option Scheme for their
contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote the interests of, the Group
and for such other purposes as the Board may approve from time to time.

Total number of Shares available under the New Share Option
Scheme

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the New Share Option Scheme is 83,407,319
shares, representing 3.31% of the Company’s issued share capital as at the
date of this report.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person under the New
Share Option Scheme

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon the exercise
of the share options granted under the New Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company to any Eligible Person(s) of the
New Share Option Scheme (including cancelled, exercised and outstanding
share options), in any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall not
exceed 1% of the number of shares in issue, unless such grant has been
duly approved by ordinary resolution of the Shareholders in general meeting
in the manner prescriber by the relevant provisions of Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules and the terms of the New Share Option Scheme.
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Time of exercise of option

There is no general requirement that an option must be held for any
minimum period before it can be exercised but the Board may in its absolute
discretion specify the conditions which must be satisfied before the option
may be exercised as it thinks fit when making an offer to an Eligible Person
of the New Share Option Scheme. An option may be exercised according to
the terms of the New Share Option Scheme and the relevant offer letter in
whole or in part by the grantee (or his personal representatives) before its
expiry by giving notice in writing to the Company stating that the option is to
be exercised and the number of shares in respect of which it is exercised.
Such notice must be accompanied by a remittance for the full amount of
the subscription price for the shares in respect of which the notice is given.
Subject to the terms of the New Share Option Scheme, an option may be
exercised by the grantee (or his personal representatives) at any time during
the option period of 10 years from the date of grant of the option.

Basis of determining the subscription price

Subject to the terms of the New Share Option Scheme, the subscription
price shall be a price solely determined by the Board and notified to an
Eligible Person and shall be at least the highest of (a) the closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer
date, which must be a business day; (b) the average of the closing price of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the offer; and (3) the nominal
value of the shares. The amount payable by a grantee of a share option to
the Company on acceptance of the offer for the grant of a share option is
HK$1.00.

Remaining life of the New Share Option Scheme

The New Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10
years commencing after the adoption date (i.e. 4 June 2018).

There was no exercise of any conversion or subscription rights under any
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights issued or granted
at any time by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year ended
31 December 2021.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

None of the Directors or their respective associate (as defined under the
Listing Rules) was granted by the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, any
rights or options to acquire Shares or debentures during the year ended
31 December 2021.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme of the Company as disclosed in this report,
no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares or that require the Company to enter into any agreements that will or
may result in the Company issuing shares were entered into by the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2021 or subsisted at the end of the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem any listed
securities of the Company during the year.

DETAILS OF PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE UNDER
RULE 14.36B

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 15 December
2020, pursuant to a capital injection agreement dated 15 December 2020
(the “Capital Injection Agreement”) and entered into among Jiangxi Yaxing
Construction Co., Ltid.* (DO O0OOOO0OOOO) (the “Target Company”),
Yu Nanhui (OO 0O), Li Peng (O O) and Chen Chen (O O) (the “Target
Shareholders”) and Zhuhai Singyes Green Construction Technology Co., Ltd.*
(00DO00ODO0DOO0ODOO00OO, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company) (“Zhuhai Singyes”) in relation to the acquisition of 51% equity
interest in the Target Company by way of an injection of capital of RMB39.9
million into the Target Company by Zhuhai Singyes (the “Capital Injection”).
Pursuant to the Capital Injection Agreement, the Target Shareholders
undertake and guarantee to Zhuhai Singyes that the audited net profit (after
deducting non-recurring profit and loss) of the Target Company shall not be
less than RMB30.00 million, RMB60.00 million and RMB90.00 million for
the financial year ending 31 December 2021, 2022 and 2023, respectively
(the “Guaranteed Profit(s)”). For the year ended 31 December 2021, the
audited net profit of the Target Company met the Guaranteed Profit. The
Company will closely monitor the above-mentioned performance guarantee.
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INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVES OF THE
COMPANY IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2021, so far as the Directors are aware, the Directors
and chief executives of the Company and their associates had the following
interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which (i) were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (iii) were required, pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange:

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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Company/name
of associated
corporation Number of Approximate %
Name oooo Capacity Type of interest shares of shareholding?
og gooooo ad oood good ooooooos
Mr. Zheng Qingtao  Company Beneficial interest ? Long 1,600,000 0.06%
ooooo ooog ooooe2 ood
Mr. Liu Hongwei Company Interest of a controlled Long 202,038,750 8.01%
ooooo oood corporation * 0d
oooooot
Beneficial interest 2 Long 1,500,000 0.06%
ogogoe od
Sub-total 203,538,750 8.07%
ogd
Mr. Chen Fushan Company Beneficial interest 2 Long 1,400,000 0.05%
ooood ood oogog? og
Mr. Wang Dongwei  Company Beneficial interest 2 Long 1,400,000 0.05%
goooo ooog oogog? od
Mr. Xie Wen Company Beneficial interest 2 Long 1,400,000 0.05%
oood ood oogog? og
Note: oog

1. These 202,038,750 Shares are held by Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. whose share 1. 0 202,038,7500 O O 0O Strong Eagle Holdings
capital is 53% owned by Mr. Liu Hongwei. Mr. Liu Hongwei is deemed to be Wd.O 000000000 O Strong Eage
interested in these Shares by virtue of the SFO. Holdings td.0 0 0 53%0 00000000

goooobobooboooboboooboooo

2. Such interest represents the shares awards granted to the respective directors 2. goooooocOoOooOoooooooo

under a share award plan as announced by the Company on 29 December gooboooOooooooOooOoOooooo
2020. As at 31 December 2021, no share under the share award plan has g0oooc0ooooooOoooooooo
neither been purchased by the Company nor allocated to the respective 0 0 O 0 O 0706 B EEEEE S E S EE A EAE]
directors. 0000o0oO0oooOoooooo

3. The percentage is calculated on the basis of 2,521,081,780 Shares in issue as S 0 00 0\ R Ly ERE R EE E S E R E R E RE
at 31 December 2021. o000 2521,08L,7800 00000000
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INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, so far as the Directors are aware, save as disclosed
above, the persons or corporations (not being a Director or a chief executive
of the Company) who have interest or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO or have otherwise notified to the Company
pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who
were, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the nominal value
of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meetings of any other member of the Group and the amount of each
of such persons’ interest in such securities, together with any options in
respect of such capital, were as follows:

Capacity/nature

guoooboboggooooo
gaggooooo

oooooooocooooooocoooo
ooooooooooooooDooooono
oob0o0ooO00O0O0ODoooDbOo0oooon
oooooooocooooooocoooo
336000000000000000000
OooO0O0oOooOoXxvoo203000000
oooooooocoooooooocoooo
oooooooooooooooocoooo
ooooooboDoooOooooooboooooo
010%0000000000000000
oooooooooooooooocoooo
oooooboooo

Approximate %

Long/short of interest Number of shareholding?
Shareholder position ooo of shares oooao
oo gooo gooo gooo ooosd
Water Development (HK) Long position Beneficial owner! 1,687,008,585 66.92%
Holding Co., Limited oo ooooot
ooddoomooooo
Long position Person having a security 180,755,472 7.17%
ano interest in shares
oooooooo
ooo
gooooooooo Long position Interest of corporation 1,867,764,057 74.09%
o0 controlled by you!
oooooooat
gooooooao Long position Interest of corporation 1,867,764,057 74.09%
oo controlled by you!
oooooooot
Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. Long position Beneficial owner? 202,038,750 8.01%
oo ooooo?
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1. Water Development (HK) Holding Co., Limited is 100% beneficially owned by O
000000000 and DOOOO0ODOODO0O is 100% beneficially owned
byOooooooo.

2. Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. is owned by Mr. Liu Hongwei, Mr. Sun Jinli, Mr. Xie
Wen, Mr. Xiong Shi and Mr. Zhuo Jianming as to 53%, 15%, 13%, 10%, and 9%
respectively.

3. The percentage is calculated on the basis of 2,521,081,780 Shares in issue as
at 31 December 2021.

NON-COMPETITION

The Directors confirm that they have no interest in any business (apart from
the Group’s business) which competes or is likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the Group’s business.

The interested Director shall abstain from the meeting where there is actual
or potential conflict of interest.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions” below, no
contract of significance to which the Company, its holding company, or any of
its fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2021.

No contract of significance in which a Director is or was materially interested,
either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions” below,
no contract of significance for the provision of services to the Company or
any of its subsidiaries by our controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended
31 December 2021.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Acquisition of certain target companies

On 30 September 2021, Hunan Singyes Green Energy Co., Ltd (“Hunan
Singyes”or the “Purchaser”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into the Sale and Purchase Agreements with Shandong Shuifa
(0000000000 OOooo) (the
“Vendor”) and the respective Target Companies (as defined below), pursuant

Clean Energy Technology Co., Ltd.*

to which, subject to the fulfilment of the conditions precedent, the Purchaser
has agreed to purchase and the Vendor has agreed to sell (i) 100% of the
equity interest in Heze Kaifaqu Shuifa Guangyao New Energy Co., Ltd.* (O
0000000000 00000) (“Shuifa Guangyao™); (ii) 86% of the
equity interest in Xintaishi Zhongmu New Energy Technology Co., Ltd.* (O
Ooooooooooooao) (*Xintaishi Zhongmu”); and (iii) 68% of
the equity interest in Dongying Tianze New Energy Technology Co., Ltd.*
(0DD0DO0DO0ODOO0ODODOO0O0O) (“Dongying Tianze”, together with Shuifa
Guangyao and Xintaishi Zhongmu, the “Target Companies”), at an aggregate
consideration of RMB103.18 million (equivalent to approximately HK$123.82
million). Upon Completions, Shuifa Guangyao will become a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and Xintaishi Zhongmu and Dongying Tianze will
become non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company.

The Vendor is a wholly owned subsidiary of Shuifa Energy Group Limited* (O
00O000oooao), acontrolling shareholder of the Company indirectly
holding 1,687,008,585 Shares, representing approximately 66.92% of
the issued share capital in the Company. Therefore, the transactions
contemplated under the Sale and Purchase Agreement constituted a
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The Acquisition and transactions contemplated under the Sale and
Purchase Agreement was approved by the independent shareholders of
the Company in the special general meeting of the Company held on 6
December 2021. For details of the Acquisition, please refer to the Company’s
announcements dated 30 September 2021 and the circular dated 19
November 2021
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Engineering, procurement and construction agreement

On 1 December 2021, (i) Tongyu Strong Wind Electric Power Co., Ltd.* (O
00000000 0)(*Tongyu™, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, as principal; and (ii) Shandong Aoxiang Electric Power
Construction Design Consultancy Co., Lid.* (D0 0O0O0OO0OO0OOO0O
O O 0O) (“Aoxiang”) and Jilin Chengyuan Electric Power Construction Co.,
d* (0000000000000 ) (“Chengyuan”) as contractors entered
into an engineering, procurement and construction (“EPC”) agreement,
pursuant to which Tongyu has agreed to engage Aoxiang and Chengyuan to
provide EPC services in relation to the 100MW wind power station project
located in the west of Tongyu County, Baicheng City, Jilin Province, the PRC
for a total contract sum of RMB180,002,500.

As Aoxiang is an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of Shuifa Energy
Group Limited* (0 O O O O O O O O O), the controlling shareholder of
the Company, Aoxiang is a connected person of the Company. The EPC
Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder constitute a
connected transaction of the Company are subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements, but are exempt from the circular and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 1 December
2021.

Save as disclosed, no transactions as set out in the “Related party
transactions” in note 37 to the financial statements constitute any connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction which are subject to the
reporting, announcement and/or independent shareholders’ approval under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Acquisition of 60% equity interest in Beijing Guanya Weiye
Civil Construction Design Co., Lid.* (D0 O00O0ODOODOOO0O
00000) (“Beijing Guanya™)

On 5 January 2021, Zhang Jian (O O) and Zhang Yue (0 0O), as the
vendors, and Zhuhai Singyes (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company), as the purchaser, entered into an acquisition agreement, pursuant
to which the vendors have conditionally agree to sell an aggregate of 60%
equity interest in Beijing Guanya at the total consideration of RMB19.80
million. Upon completion, Beijing Guanya will become a subsidiary of the
Company and its financial statements will be consolidated into the financial
statements of the Group. As at 31 December 2021, the acquisition was not
completed.

For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 5 January
2021.

Acquisition of Dunhuang Anjie New Energy Co., Ltd.* (0 O O
0O0O0O0O0O0D00O0O) (“Dunhuang Anjie”)

On 11 January 2021, Jiangxi Xinging Photovoltaic Power Co., Ltd.* (O O
000oO0Oooooog), as the vendor, and Hunan Singyes (an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company), as the purchaser, entered into
an acquisition agreement, pursuant to which Hunan Singyes has agreed to
purchase and the vendor has agreed to sell the entirety of the equity interest
in Dunhuang Anjie. The consideration of the acquisition is RMB147,600,000,
which comprises an acquisition sum of RMB9,600,000 and the shareholder’s
loan of RMB138,000,000. The acquisition was completed and Dunhuang
Anjie has become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

For details, please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 11 January
2021 and 11 February 2021.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, save as the above and in this report,
the Group we did not have material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any future plans for
material investments as at the date of this report. Any material investments of
the Group will be funded by internal resources and external borrowings.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Byelaws,
or the law of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the Company is

incorporated.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listing Issuer as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Upon
the enquiry made by the Company all Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report contained in this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee on 19 December 2008 with
terms of references adopted on 19 December 2008 in compliance with the
Code set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The members of the audit
committee are the three independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Yick
Wing Fat, Simon, an independent non-executive Director, is the Chairman
of the audit committee. The audit committee is to serve as a focal point for
communication between other directors, the external auditor and the internal
auditor (where an internal audit function exists) of the Company as regards
their duties relating to financial and other reporting, internal controls, external
and internal audits and such other financial and accounting matters as the
Board determines from time to time. The audit committee is to assist the
Board in providing an independent review of the effectiveness of the financial
reporting process, internal control and risk management system of the Group,
overseeing the audit process and performing other duties and responsibilities
as may be assigned by the Board from time to time. The audit committee has
reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2021, including the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group. For further details of the audit committee and other
committees of the Board, please refer to the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” from pages 7 to 25.

KEY FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

The key financial and business performance indicators comprise profitability
trend and financial risk management. Details of profitability analysis are
shown in “Management Discussion and Analysis” section of this annual
report. Details of financial risk management are shown in Note 3 to the
Financial Statements in this annual report.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability of the
environment and maintaining a high standard of corporate social governance
essential for creating a framework for motivating staff, and contributes to the
community in which we conduct our businesses and creating a sustainable
return to the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group has implemented energy saving practices in its offices and
premises where applicable. The Group also plans to upgrade its air-
conditioning and electricity systems to achieve the energy saving and
provision of clear air to workplace where possible.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group also understands that it is important to maintain good relationship
with its suppliers and customers to fulfil its long-term goals and development.
To maintain its brand competitiveness and market status, the Group
aims at delivering consistently high standards of quality in the service to
its customers. During the year ended 31 December 2021, there was no
material and significant dispute between the Group and its suppliers and/or
customers.
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USD414,931,692 2% CASH-PAY AND 4% PAY-IN-
KIND SENIOR NOTE DUE 2022

On 19 December 2019, the Company issued USD414,931,692 2% cashpay
and 4% pay-in-kind senior note due 2022 (the “2022 Senior Notes”). The
2022 Senior Notes are only offered outside the United States in compliance
with Regulation S under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as
amended (“Regulation S”). The 2022 Senior Notes initially were offered to
eligible Scheme Creditors and the Holding Period Trustee (as defined in the
explanatory statement of the Company dated 1 November 2019) The 2022
Senior Notes have been listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited (the “SGX").

The major terms and conditions of the 2022 Senior Notes are as follows:

(i) Interest payment election

The Company may, at its discretion at any time, elect to pay interest
on the principal amount of the 2022 Senior Notes on each interest
payment date (i) in cash (a “Cash Coupon Election”) at the rate of
2.00% per annum prior to a Cash Coupon Election and thereafter
at 6.00% per annum (the “Cash Interest”) and (ii) by increasing the
principal amount of the 2022 Senior Notes or by issuing any 2.00%
cash-pay and 4.00% pay-in-kind guaranteed senior notes due 2022
(the “Additional Notes”) in a principal amount equal to 4.00% of the
aggregate principal amount of the note then outstanding (the “PIK
Interest”). The Cash Coupon Election shall be irrevocable.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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(ii)

(iii)

Mandatory redemption of the Company

On June 19, 2022 (the “Initial Mandatory Redemption Date”), the
Company shall redeem 40% of the 2022 Senior Notes outstanding on
the Initial Mandatory Redemption Date (including, for the avoidance
of doubt, any Additional Notes that have been issued as PIK Interest
and added to the principal amount of the Notes) at a redemption
price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof, together with
accrued and unpaid interest thereon (at the rate of 6.00% per annum,
corresponding to the aggregate of the interest ordinarily payable in
cash and the interest ordinarily payable in kind) to, but excluding, the
Initial Mandatory Redemption Date.

Redemption at the option of the Company

Upon not less than 30 nor more than 60 days’ notice to the Holders,
the Trustee and the Paying Agent (each such date, an “Optional
Redemption Date”), at any time, the Company may at its option
redeem the notes outstanding on the applicable Optional Redemption
Date (including, for the avoidance of doubt, any Additional Notes
that have been issued as PIK Interest and added to the principal
amount of the notes) in whole or in part at a redemption price equal
to 100% of the aggregate principal amount thereof together with
accrued and unpaid interest thereon (at the rate of 6.00% per annum,
corresponding to the aggregate of the interest ordinarily payable in
cash and the interest ordinarily payable in kind) to, but excluding, the
applicable Optional Redemption Date.

The Company repurchased the 2022 Senior Notes with an aggregate nominal
value of US$191,644,000 during the year, of which US$90,788,559 in
principal amount of the 2022 Senior Notes was repurchased by way of a
tender offer through Euroclear Bank SA/NV and/or Clearstream Banking,
and approximately US$100,855,000 in principal amount of the 2022 Senior
Notes was repurchased on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited. Particulars of the Company’s repurchase of the 2022 Senior Notes
have been set out in the Company’s announcements dated 8 June 2020,
16 June 2020, 17 June 2020 and 14 December 2020. As as 31 December
2021, US$232,165,141 in aggregate principal amount of the 2022 Senior
Notes remained outstanding.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group has compliance and risk management policies and procedures,
and members of the senior management are delegated with the continuing
responsibility to monitor adherence and compliance with all significant legal
and regulatory requirements. These policies and procedures are reviewed
regularly. As far as the Company is aware, it has complied in material aspects
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
business and operation of the Company and its subsidiaries.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group’s success also depends on the support from key stakeholders
which comprises employees, customers and shareholders.

Employees

Employees are regarded as the most important and valuable assets of
the Group. The objective of the Groups’ human resource management
is to reward and recognize performing staff by providing a competitive
remuneration package and implementing a sound performance appraisal
system with appropriate incentives, and to promote career development and
progression by appropriate training and providing opportunities within the
Group for career advancement.

Customers

The Group has the mission to provide excellent and creative customer service
whilst maintain our long-term profitability, business and asset growth. Various
means have been established to strength the communication between the
customers and the Group in the provision of quality customer service towards

market penetration and expansion.

Shareholders

One of our corporate goals of the Group is to enhance corporate value to
shareholders. The Group is poised to foster business developments for
achieving the sustainability of earnings growth and rewarding shareholders by
stable dividend payouts taking into account capital adequacy levels, liquidity
positions and business expansion needs of the Group.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM ISSUE OF SHARES

As disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 15 October 2019 (the
“Circular”), the Company issued 1,687,008,585 ordinary shares (the
“Subscription Shares”) at the Subscription Price of HK$0.92 per Subscription
Share to Water Development (HK) Holding Co., Limited. The aggregate
nominal value of the Subscription Shares is US$16,870,085.85. The
closing price as quoted on the Stock Exchange of the shares on 29 March
2019, being the last trading day before the entering into of the Subscription
Agreement, was HK$0.99. The gross proceeds from the Subscription
is expected to amount to approximately HK$1,552,047,898. The net
proceeds, after taking into account the estimated expenses in relation to
the Subscription (including but not limited to miscellaneous expenses on
issue of new Shares certificates to the Subscriber, the preparation of the
circular and relevant transaction documents), would be approximately
HK$1,550,000,000, representing a net price of approximately HK$0.92 per
Subscription Share.

As at 31 December 2021, the use of proceeds were as follows:

As disclosed in
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Actual usage as at
31 December

the Circular 2021
gooooo
gogd bOoooood
od goooo
HK$'000 HK$'000 %
odg oog
Restructuring of existing debts of goooooooo 550,000 550,000 100%
the Group
Fees and expenses related to the gooooooooo 85,000 85,000 100%
overall restructuring exercise ooooo
Financing the Group’s existing EPC 0ooooooepcOO 500,000 500,000 100%
business gooad
Exploring potential merger and 0oooooooooog 300,000 300,000 100%
acquisition opportunities
Providing general working capital oooooooooo 115,000 115,000 100%
and normalised funding levels for oooooooo
the Group’s ongoing operations oooooo
Total 0d 1,550,000 1,555,000 100%
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float of not less than 25% of the issued share capital of the Company
pursuant to the Listing Rules and as agreed with the Stock Exchange, based
on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and considers all the Independent Non-Executive Directors
to be independent.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young were the auditors of the Company for the financial years ended
31 December 2019 and 2020. Due to the relevant regulations issued by the
Ministry of Finance of the PRC and the State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of the State Council of the PRC in respect of the
restrictions on the term of continuous audit services that an accounting firm
can provide to state-owned enterprises and its subsidiaries, Ernst & Young
retired and PWC was appointed as the auditors of the Company effective
upon the conclusion of the annual general meeting of the Company dated
10 June 2021. The Board confirms that there were no disagreements or
unresolved matters between the Company and Ernst & Young and there
were no other matters in connection with the change of auditors that need to
be brought to the attention of the shareholders of the Company. For details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 3 May 2021.

The financial statements of the Company for the year have been audited
by PWC which will retire, and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution for the
re-appointment of PWC as auditor of the Company is to be proposed of the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

By order of the Board

Zheng Qingtao
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2022

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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To the Shareholders of China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

ooooooooocoOooooooocoa
ooooooooooooonn

HRN

goooooo

O0o00o0o0ooo2002640000000
oooooDObOO0000Do0oo0o0oOoOoooo
odnooo0oOoooooooooooao

The consolidated financial statements of China Shuifa Singyes Energy
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which
are set out on pages 92 to 264, comprise:

goooo

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December o goo0oooOoOoooooDooOooono
2021; ooood

o the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive ° goo0ooDoOoOoOoooDoOoOoOoon
income for the year then ended; ogooag

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ° JooDoooooooDooooon
ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and ° gooooOoooooooooooono

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include . O0000O0O0o0oOooobOoOoOoooon

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. oooooooo

Our opinion oooon
go0oooO0o0obOo0obobooobooobo
0000000000000 MOoooon
00000000000000000000
oo0o0o0oO0o0obOoOoboobooobooooba
00000000000000000000
oooooooog

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International
Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards Board
for Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

. Revenue recognition for provision of construction services
o Impairment assessment of trade receivables and contract assets
o Impairment assessment of certain property, plant and equipment

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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Key audit matter
oooooo

1. Revenue recognition for provision of construction services
oooooooonnn

Refer to note 2.24 in summary of significant accounting
policies, note 4(i) in critical accounting estimates and
judgements, and note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

00000000000 00224000000000000
0400000000050

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has
recognised revenue from provision of construction services
of approximately RMB5,105,877,000 based on the progress
towards the complete satisfaction of the Group’s performance
obligations under the respective construction contracts with
customers (the “completion progress”). Management applied
the input method to determine the completion progress which
is measured mainly by reference to the proportion of contract
costs incurred for works performed to date to estimated total
budget construction costs for each contract. The input method
involves the use of significant management’s judgement and
estimates on the total budget construction costs, completion
progress and the remaining costs to completion for each of
the construction projects. In addition, revenue, cost and gross
profit realised from such projects may vary from the Group’s
original estimates because of changes in conditions and
service scope (e.g. variation orders).
000000000000 0oU0oOoDoOO0 ooooao
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2

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Oodooooooooooooo

We obtained an understanding of the management’s internal
control and process of revenue recognition for provision
of construction services and assessed the inherent risk of
material misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors, such as
complexity, subjectivity and susceptibility to management bias
or fraud.
O0ooobobooooooooooooooooobooo
dodooooboooouoooboooboooooooooo
do0ddobodobooboobooobooomoooo
ogoooooobooooao

We evaluated and tested the key controls over the revenue
recognition for provision of construction services.
0ob00oooooobobooooooboboooooooboo

We compared the actual construction costs for projects
(including variation orders) as completed in the current year
with the prior year estimation to assess the effectiveness of
management’s estimation process on a sample basis.
0000000000 oooooooooooooon
0000000 o0ooooooooooooooooon
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We reviewed the construction contracts terms including the
service scope, total price and tested progress billings accepted
by the respective customers on a sample basis.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
oodooooooooooooo

1. Revenue recognition for provision of construction services (continued)

ooooooooononon

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of revenue as
generated from the provision of construction services and
the high degree of estimation uncertainty of management’s
judgements and estimates applied when using the input
method.
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0000000000000 0000000oOooooon
oooooooo

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

We tested the actual construction costs as incurred (including
costs material used, labor costs and other costs) by validating
the relevant underlying supporting evidence, such as contracts
with suppliers, salary lists and supplier invoices etc., on a
sample basis.

000000000 0O0O000DOoO0O0OoDoDoOoOoooOoodg
000000000000 O00U0O0muooooooog
ooooooooooom

We performed physical inspection of significant construction
projects and discussed the completion progress of the
construction services with the respective project managers-in-
charge on a sample basis.

0000000000000 0DOoO0O0UODOoOoOoooOoog
ooodooooooood

We checked the mathematical accuracy of the management’s
calculations of (i) the completion progress (calculated based
on the total actual costs incurred to date and the latest total
budget construction costs); and (ii) the amounts of revenue to
be recognised based on the completion progress of different
construction projects.
ododoopoooDOoMUuoODomooboooooooooo
doodo00Doo0DoOoDOoo0mOoaG)booobooo
dbb0oooobooooooooooooooa

Based on the procedures performed, we considered that the
management’s judgments and estimations used in the revenue
recognition for the Group’s provision of construction services
were supportable by the evidence we have gathered.
ddboooooboooobooobooo boooobood
O0o00doooobooooobobooooobooooooo
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Oodooooooooooooo

2. Impairment assessment of trade receivables and contract assets

oooooooooooooono

Refer to note 2.11 in summary of significant accounting
policies, note 4(ii) in critical accounting estimates and
judgements, note 3.1 in financial risk management, and notes
19 and 20 to the consolidated financial statements.
OoD00D0ooDoDOooDOOoOoDOOozllopDooDoooog
000004000 00DOdooo31000o00ooa
O0O0O0Oo 190 200

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had gross trade
receivables (other than the receivables in connection with
unpaid subsidies on tariff adjustment (the “Tariff Subsidy
Receivables”) and gross contract assets of approximately
RMB3,325,585,000 and RMB3,893,432,000, respectively
and the corresponding provisions for impairment losses
as recognised on these assets amounted to approximately
RMB839,310,000 and RMB198,572,000, respectively.
dooboobooooooobobO bobobooooboooda
doddddooooooooobobobbooooodoooono
O00D0O000000000000 3,325585000000
0038934320000 00000000000000000
000000 839,310,00000000 198,572,0000 0

We obtained an understanding of management’s internal
control and the process of assessment of impairment of trade
receivables and contract assets, and assessed the inherent
risk of material misstatement by considering the degree
of estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent risk
factors, such as complexity, subjectivity and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud.
go0oooboobooooboooboooobooooooo
0000o0ooOoobO0ooooOooooooooooan
O O0000O0O00O00OD00oO0OCO0oCoOoOoOooUOoOo
doooooobobobbooooono

We understood and tested the management’s key controls over
the impairment assessment of trade receivables and contract
assets on a sample basis.

0000000000 0D0O0ooU0OoOooOooOoooooon
goooboboboboooooono

We performed the following procedures to assess the
recoverability of trade receivables (other than the Tariff Subsidy
Receivables) and contract assets:
O00000C0O0O00O00OoU0OoOOoDmuooooooo
moogoooooood
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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2. Impairment assessment of trade receivables and contract assets (continued)

oooooooooooooononnn

In respect of the Tariff Subsidy Receivables which amounted
to RMB892,443,000 as at 31 December 2021, management
considered that the expected credit loss on these receivables is
insignificant, considering the regular settlement from the State
Grid Corporation of China which are funded by the Ministry of
Finance of China and there was no history of default.
OO000000000O0OO00O0o0ooooooooan
892,443,0000 00000000000 OOCOOOOOOO
00000000000 0000D000O0O0D0OoOooon
oooooo

Management assessed the impairment of trade receivables
and contract assets based on an assessment of the lifetime
expected credit losses (“ECL”) methodology. The impairment
of individually significant trade receivables and contract assets
were assessed on an individual basis based on management’s
estimates on the discounted future cash flows. Individually
insignificant trade receivables and contract assets balances
were grouped based on their shared credit risk characteristics
for overall evaluation. The collective impairment provision
was determined by management based on historical loss
experience, taking into considerations of forward-looking
macroeconomic data, industry risk and other factors.

0000000000000 o000 0moooon
0000000000000 0Oo0ooUoDoOooooon
0000000000000 0oo0ooooooooon
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Oodooooooooooooo

2. Impairment assessment of trade receivables and contract assets (continued)

oooooooooooooononnn

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of trade
receivables and contract assets and the high degree of
estimation uncertainty of management’s judgements applied
in assessing the impairment of such balances, and estimates
involved in the impairment assessment for these assets.

0000000000000 00o0oooDoooon
000000000000 000000C000O0ooon
O000o0o0o0ooooO0ooooooooooooon

We performed the following procedures to assess the
recoverability of the Tariff Subsidy Receivables:
D0d0o000oooo0oooooooooooooo

° discussed with management to understand the nature
and the judgement involved in their determination
that the expected credit loss on the Tariff Subsidy
Receivables;
000000000o00oo0ooooooooooooo
ooooooooo

° checked the approval documents for the Group’s
eligibility to the subsidies;
00 OO0O0OO0OoOoOoOoOoooooono

° circulated confirmation letter to the State Grid Corporation
of China to confirm the unpaid balance of the Tariff
Subsidy Receivables; and
000000 0DoO0o0o0ooooooooooog
oooooo

° checked the subsequent settlement of the Tariff Subsidy
Receivables on a sample basis.
O000dd0oboooOooooooooooa

Based on the procedures performed, we considered that the
management’s impairment assessment of trade receivables
and contract assets was supportable by the evidence we have
gathered.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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3. Impairment assessment of certain property, plant and equipment

ooooooooooooono

Refer to note 2.10 in summary of significant accounting
policies, note 4(v) in critical accounting estimates and
judgements, and note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.
oo0o0DoDO0ooDoDooDoDOoOoDOozloc0bOOODOOOOO
00000 4vDOODDOODOODOOO 140

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had certain property,
plant and equipment with carrying amounts before impairment
of approximately RMB634,785,000, against which a provision
for impairment of approximately RMB45,628,000 has been
recognised.

000000000000 00 Dooooooooooo
0000oD0ODD0D000O0000OD0OD0e34,78,00000000
0000000O456280000 00000

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

We obtained an understanding of management’s internal
control and process of assessment of impairment of these
property, plant and equipment, and assessed the inherent
risk of material misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors
such as complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud.
00oobbooobooobooboooobobooobooon
000o00o0oooboooooooooooooooaan
0000000000 0D0OOoOoU0O0oOoooUOOoooooOoo
dooooboboboooooooo

We evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the external valuation experts engaged by the Group.
00000 ODOo0O0boOO0ooOOoobOoobOooOooooo
ooo

We compared the current year actual results with the prior year
forecast to consider, with hindsight, whether key assumptions
included in that forecast had been subject to management
bias and to assess the effectiveness of management’s estimate
process.
gboobboooboooboobooboboooboboon
000000000000 0oOo0ooooooooooon
O000000ooooooog

Annual Report 2021



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

B A2 AR S

pwec

Key audit matter
oooooo

8

2

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Oodooooooooooooo

3. Impairment assessment of certain property, plant and equipment (continued)

oooooooooooooooino

Management performed an impairment assessment to
determine the recoverable amounts of these property, plant
and equipment individually or at the related cash-generating
units (“CGU") level, which is the higher of the fair value less
costs of disposal and value-in-use of the related assets or
CGUs. The Group has engaged external valuation experts to
assist in determining the value-in-use of the relevant CGUs.
Determination of value in use of the relevant CGUs involved
developing key assumptions, including:
0000000000000 0000O0o0DoOoooon
0000000000000 0Ooooooooooaon
00000000000 00000oo0oooooooon
0000000 ODO0O0O0O0O0O0O0OoO0OoOoDooOoooo
000000000000 0O0oU0DOoO0oUoOoooon
oooooooooocogo

o Compound annual growth rate in revenue within the
budget period;
oooooooooooooo

° Growth rates to extrapolate cash flows beyond the
budget period;
Joodo0o0oooooooooooogo

. Gross margin;

oooo

. Improvement cost; and
gooood

o Pre-tax discount rate.
gOooood

We assessed management’s future cash flow forecasts and
calculation of value-in-use of each CGU. Our procedures
included:
ddodoboooobooooobooooooobooooa
gooooooboooooo

° assessed the appropriateness of the valuation model
adopted by reference to market practices;
ooooobooooooboooooooa

° assessed and challenged the reasonableness of the key KN
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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3. Impairment assessment of certain property, plant and equipment (continued)

ooooooooooooononno

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of impairment
provisions as recognsied and the high degree of estimation
uncertainty of management’s judgements and estimate in
deriving the assumptions used in assessing the impairment
provision.
000000o0oO0o0ooooooDooooooooooa
O00000o0OQCO000OO0oOoOoCOoO0O0oooooooon
gooooooo
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We assessed management’s sensitivity analysis to evaluate the
assumptions to which the outcomes of the discounted cash
flows are more sensitive and the degree to which and likelihood
that these assumptions may move to trigger an impairment.
g0oobobOooboooboooobooobooobooon
00000000 0bO0oOooOoOoooOoooooooaan
oo

Based on the procedures performed, we considered that the
management’s impairment assessment of these property, plant
and equipment were supportable by the evidence we gathered.
000o0oooooboo0oooobooooooooooo
O0000000ooOOoOoOoooooo
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Dou Wang, Angel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 March 2022
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| ’ CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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Year ended 31 December 2021 000000000000 O0OOO0O

Year ended 31 December
gooooooooooo

2021 2020
ooooo ooooo
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
od ooooo ooooo
(Restated)
ooooo
Revenue oag 5 6,503,428 5,578,524
Cost of sales oooo 6 (5,428,452) (4,664,116)
Gross profit oag 1,074,976 914,408
Distribution costs oooo 6 (86,819) (78,926)
Administrative expenses gooag 6 (408,515) (415,076)
Net impairment losses on financial and goooooooooo
contract assets oo (63,244) (262,965)
Other income oooag 8 51,862 37,562
Other gains — net oooooo 9 11,400 259,796
Operating profit ooog 579,660 454,799
Finance income oooag 10 3,926 3,042
Finance costs oooog (292,947) (230,198)
Finance costs — net oooooo (289,021) (227,156)
Share of net results of associates ooooooooag
accounted for using the equity method oooooao (535) (12,620)
Profit before income tax oooon 290,104 215,023
Income tax (charge)/credit O0moooooo 11 (54,311) 117,351
Profit for the year ooooo 235,793 332,374
Other comprehensive income: gooooa
Items that may be reclassified ooooooooa
to profit or loss ooo
Currency translation differences oooooo 70,904 139,935
Item that will not be reclassified ooooooooa
to profit or loss ooo
Currency translation differences oooooo (48,369) (58,319)
Changes in fair value of equity investments OO00OO0O0OO0O0OOO0O
at fair value through other comprehensive 0O0O0OOOOO00O0OO
income gooooo (28) (519)

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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Year ended 31 December 2021 OO OOOOOOOOOCOOOOODO

Year ended 31 December
o0odO0oooDoooood

2021 2020
ooooa ooooa
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
oo ogoooa goooa
(Restated)
ooooo
Total other comprehensive income goooooooag
for the year oad 22,507 81,097
Total comprehensive income for the year goooooooag 258,300 413,471
Profit attributable to: ooooooooo
Owners of the Company oooooo 221,410 310,632
Non-controlling interests ooooa 14,383 21,742
235,793 332,374
Total comprehensive income/(loss) oooooooo
attributable to: gooooOmooo
Owners of the Company gooooo 243,937 393,044
Non-controlling interests goooo 14,363 20,427
258,300 413,471
Earnings per share for profit attributableto OO0 OO0 000000
owners of the Company during the year gpoooooooo
(expressed in RMB per share) Doooooooodgo
— basic and diluted -gpoooo 12 0.088 0.132

The above consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive odoooboooOooOooOooboooooo

income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. ooooo
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At 31 December

| ’ CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

?J

At 31 December

2021 2020
oooooo oooooo
goooooo goooooo
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
od ooooo ooooo
(Restated)
oooono
ASSETS od
Non-current assets googoo
Property, plant and equipment goooooono 14 4,971,792 4,328,702
Right-of-use assets goooo 15 261,049 222,734
Investment properties oooo 16 340,590 333,141
Intangible assets oooog 17 106,331 102,978
Prepayments gopooo 10,120 23,486
Investments accounted for using the opoooooo
equity method ooo 1,438 1,973
Deferred income tax assets gooooo 31 303,499 241,047
Equity investment designated at fair value gooooooooo
through other comprehensive income ooooooooo
ooooooo 10,503 10,531
6,005,322 5,264,592
Current assets oood
Inventories oag 18 67,433 55,765
Contract assets gooao 19 3,694,860 2,903,957
Trade and bills receivables goooooooooo 21 3,398,449 4,178,348
Prepayments, other receivables and gooooooooon
other assets goooo 22 750,977 370,043
Pledged deposits gooa 23 21,820 47,170
Cash and cash equivalents oooooooo 23 659,123 903,463
8,592,662 8,458,746
Total assets oooag 14,597,984 13,723,338
EQUITY oo
Equity attributable to owners gpooooo
of the Company oooog
Share capital ooooo 24 174,333 174,333
Reserves od 26 2,417,957 2,483,395
Retain earnings gooagd 1,785,081 1,637,631
4,377,371 4,295,359
Non-controlling interests ooooa 304,628 293,110
Total equity oooo 4,681,999 4,588,469

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited
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At 31 December

At 31 December

2021 2020
oooooo oooooo
ooooooo ooooooo
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
oo ooooa ooooag
(Restated)
ooooao
LIABILITIES od
Non-current liabilities googoo
Borrowings oo 29 3,118,040 1,848,727
Senior notes oooag 30 - 1,488,096
Lease liabilities oooo 15 16,254 22,694
Deferred income tax liabilities gooooo 31 110,302 110,381
Deferred income ogooag 32 179,967 143,033
3,424,563 3,612,931
Current liabilities oood
Trade and bills payables goooooooooo 27 2,180,962 1,923,871
Other payables and accruals goooooooooo 28 1,686,262 2,147,228
Borrowings oag 29 799,667 1,199,922
Senior notes ogooa 30 1,468,208 -
Contract liabilities gooo 5) 192,319 131,361
Income tax payable goooa 161,998 116,050
Lease liabilities oooo 15 2,006 3,506
6,491,422 5,521,938
Total liabilities oooag 9,915,985 9,134,869
Total equity and liabilities oo00ooooag 14,597,984 13,723,338

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in oo0o0O00OO0O0DbOoDOOoOoDOOoOobOOobDoOoa

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

090202640 0000000000000
ogooobooooobooobooooooo

The consolidated financial statements on pages 92 to 264 were approved by
the Board of Directors of the Company on 24 March 2022 and were signed

on its behalf. gooa
Mr. Zheng Qingtao Mr. Liu Hongwei
ooooog ooooog
Director Director
oo oo
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Year ended 31 December 2021 DO 000000000 ODOOOOO

Fair value
resene
of financial
assets at
fair value
Share throughother ~ Statutory  Enterprise Share Safety  Exchange Non-
Issued ~ premium Merger ~ Contributed comprehensive feserve  expansion option ~ fund surplus ~ fluctuation  Retained controlling
capital ~ account Tesere surplus income fund fund Tesene Tesene Tesere profits Total interests  Total equity
00ooo
noooo
00ooo
noooo
0o 0o 00 0oooo oooo nooo 0oo oooo oooo 0o oo oo
poooo noo 0o 0o 0oooo 0o oo oo oooo 0o oo 0o 0o oo
RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'OO0  RMB'OO0  RMB'OO0  RMB'OO0  RMB'0O0  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000
At 1 January 2021 nooooooooao
(Previously reported) 0ooooo 174333 2071435 (42223) 11997 (1795 320417 115969 55,322 - (119744) 1634846 4214557 269322 4483879
Business combinafion 000ooooooa
under common control (Note 36) 000360 - - 75,221 - - 2790 - - - - 2785 80,802 23788 104590
Restated belance ot 0ooooooooo
1 January 2021 000000 174333 2071435 33,004 11,997 (1795 323207 115969 55,322 - (119744) 1637631 4295359 293110 4588469
Proft for the year ooooo - - - - - - - - - - N0 21410 14383 235793
Other comprehensive goooooooo
income for the year:
Changes in air value of 000000000
equy instruments at poooooooo
fair value through other 000000000
comprefiensive income, poooooa
nietoffax - - - - (28) - - - - - - (28) ° (28)
Exchange differences on 0ooooooonooo
{renslafion of financil
statements - - - - - - - - - 22,555 - 22,555 (20) 22,535
Total comprehensive 000000o0o
income for the year - - - - (28) - - - - 255 21410 43937 14363 258,300
Acquisttion of a subsidiary 0oooooon - - - - - - - - - - - - 13,064 13,064
Transfer from retained profts 0oooooo - - - - - 61,766 - - - - (61766) - - -
Business combinafion 0ooooooooo
under common control - - (90,986) - = o = - - - (12,194 (103,180) - (103,180)
Distrbuton to non- ooooooooo
controling Shereholders nooooo
of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - - - (15,909)  (15909)
Transfer from share nooooooo
premium account - (70,000) - 70,000 - - - - - - - - - -
2000fingl dividend gooooog
paid (Note 33) 000moon3n - - - (58749 - - - - - - - (58745) - (58745)
Establishment for safety oooooooooo
fund surplus resere - - - - - - - - 100815 - (100815) - - -
Utiisaton of safefy fund gooooooooo
Surplus reserve - - - - - - - - (100815) - 100815 - - -
At 31 December 2021 J000000000000 174333 2,000.435 57,982 23,252 (7823) 384973 115969 55,322 - 97.189) 1785081 4377371 304628 4681999

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

e

2B

Year ended 31 December 2020 D 0000000000 ODOOOOO

Far value
Tesene
offiancial
assefsat
fair value
Share throughother ~ Statutoy  Enterprise Share Safely  Exchange Non-
ssued  premium Merger — Confributed comprehensive feSeNe  expansion option~ fund surplus~~ fuctuation Retained controling
caplel ~ acoount Tesene surplus ncome fund fund Tesene Tesene Tesene profs Total inferests  Total equiy
00ooo
ooooo
00ooo
ooooo
00 0o 00 0oooo oooo oooao 0oo pooo oooo 0o poo oo
pgooo oog oo 00 0oooo oo oo 00 oooo oo og il il og
RMB'O00 RMB'OOD ~ RMB'ODO  RMB'OCO  RWB'OO0  RMB'OC0  RMB'OO0  RMB'OOO  RMB'OO0  RMB'0D0  RMB'OCO  RWB'000  RMB'000  RWB 000
00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 D0O0O0 00000
At 1 January 2020 gooooooooo
(Previously reported) oooooo 17438 20714% 56,350 11997 726 29039 115909 54,688 - (06T 133476 3928666 108070 40367%
Business combinafion 0ooooooooa
under common control (Note 36) 000360 - - 48571 - - 1654 - - - - 19707 69938 JANIA] 97l
Restated belance ot oogooooooo
1 January 2000 000000 1433 207143 104927 11997 (2760 29083 115%09 54,688 - (067 13I8 399860 19843 418447
Proft for the year ooooo - - - - - - - - - - 062 306 A7 33
Other comprehensive goooooooo
income for the year:
Changes in fair value of 000o0oooo
equy instruments at poooooooo
fair value through other 000000000
comprefiensive income, poooooa
nietoffax - - - - (519) - - = = - - (519) o (519)
Exchange differences on 0ooooooono
{rensiafion of financil og
staements - - - - - - - - - 8231 - 82931 (1315) 81616
Total comprehensive noooooo
income for the year - - - - (19 - - - - 82031 310632 3930 N4 43411
Acquisttion of non-controling nooooao
inerests - - (1,710 - - - - - - - - (1,710) (8290 (10000)
Capttl injection by a non- 0oooooo
controling shareholder - - - - - - - - - - - - 4900 4900
Acquistion of a subsidiary gooooooa - - (%,863) - - - - - - - - (%863 148305 51,42
Transfer from retained profts noooooo - - - - - 30,048 - - - - (30,048) = = =
Capitalinjection rom related party 1oooo - - 26,650 - - 11% - - - - (1,130) 26650 - 26,650
Dividend paic fo non-controling nooooooooo
shareholders of a subsidiary 00000 - - - - - - - - - - (250000 (25,000 (1789 (26789)
Equiy-setfled share option ooooooooo
arrangements - - - - - - - 634 - - - 634 (286) 38
Establishment for saefy fund 0oooooooog
surplus resene - - - - - - - - 69719 - (69,719) - - -
Utlisaton of safety fund surplus 0ogoooooog
Tesene - - - - - - - P (69.719) - 9719 - - -
At 31 December 2020 J000000000000 174383 207143% 33004 11997 (17%) 3301 11599 5530 - (119740 1637631 429530 03110 4583469

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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’ CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS
meRERER

Year ended 31 December 2021 000000000000 O0OOO0O

Year ended 31 December
o0o0O0oooDoooood

2021 2020
ooooo ooooo
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
oo ooooo ooooo
(Restated)
ooooo
Cash flows from operating activities: goooooooo
Cash generated from operations oooooooo 457,050 51,426
Income tax paid ooooo 34(a) (68,666) (41,554)
Net cash generated from operating activities OO0 OO0 O0O0O0O 388,384 9,872
Cash flows from investing activities: ooooooooooon
Payment for acquisition of subsidiary, dooooDmoooo
net of cash acquired ooooo 36 (78,629) (215,724)
Payments for property, plant and equipment OO0 00000000 (764,277) (171,270)
Purchase of intangible assets gooooo (1,988) -
Payments for leasehold land gooooo (58,858) (513)
Proceeds from disposal of associates oooooooooo - 76,222
Proceeds from sale of property, gooooooooon
plant and equipment gooo 4,533 56,264
Proceeds from government grants for oooooooo
property, plant and equipment goooooooag 51,596 1,046
Proceeds from sale of financial assets gooooooood
at fair value through profit or loss ooooooood - 5,000
Repayment of loans by related parties ooooooo - (20,000)
Decrease/(increase) in maturity of ooooooo
pledged deposits oo0moog 25,349 (10,024)
Net cash used in investing activities ooooooooo (822,274) (278,999)

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2021



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS
meRERER

Year ended 31 December 2021 OO OOOOOOOOOCOOOOODO

Year ended 31 December
o0odO0oooDoooood

2021 2020
goooo goooo
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
gd goooo gooono
(Restated)
ooooo
Cash flows from financing activities: goooooooooo
Capital injection by a non-controlling goooooo
shareholder - 4,900
Proceeds from borrowings goooono 2,465,912 1,934,619
Proceeds from loans from related parties goooooooag 1,137,015 2,183,920
Payment for acquisition of non-controlling goooooooooo
interests of a subsidiary ooooa - (10,000)
Repayments of senior notes oooooo - (1,111,621)
Repayments of borrowings gooa (1,631,413) (2,048,180)
Repayments of loans from related parties goooooo (1,486,525) (643,802)
Repayments of bank advances for oooooogo
discounted bills ooao - (38,889)
Principal elements of lease payments oooooooo (3,059) (8,159)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests O OO0O0O0O00O0O00OO (13,941) (2,115)
Dividends paid oooog (58,745) =
Interest paid oooog (218,936) (190,865)
Net cash generated from financing activites 00O OO0 OO00OO 190,308 69,808
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents gooooooooa (243,582) (199,319)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning oooooog
of the year ooo 903,463 1,100,772
Effects of exchange rate changes on oooooooooon
cash and cash equivalents gooooooo (758) 2,010
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year oooooooooa 23 659,123 903,463

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

g NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LR R E R

31 December202l OO0 O OOOOOOOOO

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in Bermuda
on 24 October 2003. The registered office of the Company is located
at 4th Floor, North Cedar House, 41 Cedar Avenue, Hamilton, HM12,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is located at
Unit 3108, 31st Floor, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-
200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) were principally engaged in the design, manufacture, supply
and installation of conventional curtain walls, wind farm construction
and building integrated solar photovoltaic systems, as well as the
manufacture and sale of solar power products in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”). There were no significant changes in the nature
of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the “Directors”), the
immediate holding company, the intermediate holding company and
ultimate holding company of the Company are Water Development (HK)
Holding Co., Ltd., which is incorporated in Hong Kong, Shuifa Energy
Group Limited (0000000 OOO, “Shuifa Energy”), which is
incorporated in the PRC, and Shuifa Group Co., id (DO OO O OO
0, “Shuifa Group”), which is incorporated in the PRC, respectively.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”) unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors of
the Company on 24 March 2022.

Annual Report 2021

godd

000ooooooooooOoooo
0Mooohoooooooonooao
ooooooooooooooooo
00000000000 d 4th Floor,
North Cedar House, 41 Cedar Avenue,
Hamilton, HM12, Bermudall O O O O
O0o0ooooooooooiesn
2000 000000000310 3108
oo

00oo0oDoOoO0O0mooooooom
oooooocoOoooOooooooo
ooooooobOocOooOOooooono
ooooooooooooboOomo
0doooooooooooooao
oobooobOoOooOoOooooooon
o0

o000Onmo0omoooooon
Oo00000ooOoooooooooon
000000000 0OOOOoO Wwater
Development (HK) Holding Co., Ltd. O O
Oo0o0O0o0o0oooooooooooo
0o0O0oooooOoooooooo
onooooood

oooooooOoooOooooooo
00noooOmooooooocoo
oo0oo0oooooooooooooo
ooooooooo



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R EU R

31 December2021 00O OOOOOOOOO

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. 000O0OO0OO0O0O
POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these jo0o0DO0oDoDooooDOooooon
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies godoooOO0oOoOooooDOoOoon
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless JooDoooooooooooon

otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation 2.1 0O0O0O

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. These consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by certain equity investments which
have been measured at fair value.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed
in note 4.
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g NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LR R E R

31 December202l OO0 O OOOOOOOOO

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

On 30 September 2021, Hunan Shuifa Singyes Green Energy
Co., Ltd. (“Hunan Green Energy”), an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an equity transfer
agreement with Shuifa Clean Energy Technology Co., Ltd (“Shuifa
Clean Energy”), a company controlled by the ulitmate holding
company, Shuifa Group, pursuant to which Hunan Green Energy
acquired 100% equity interests in Heze Development Zone
Shuifa Guangyao New Energy Co., Ltd. (“Heze Guangyao”), 86%
equity interests in Xintai Zhongmu New Energy Technology Co.,
Ltd. (“Xintai Zhongmu”) and 68% equity interests in Dongying
Tianze New Energy Technology Co., Ltd. (“Dongying Tianze”), at
cash considerations of RMB3,160,000, RMB49,020,000 and
RMB51,000,000, respectively (collectively the “Common Control
Acquisitons”). The transaction was completed on 7 December
2021.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R EU R

31 December2021 00O OOOOOOOOO

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. J0O0O0oOoOoOoOoO

POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 0Oomod

The Company, Heze Guangyao, Xintai Zhongmu and Dongying
Tianze are under common control of Shuifa Group both before
and after above transaction. Therefore, it was regarded as a
common control combination and accounted for using the
principles of merger accounting. The financial statements of
Heze Guangyao, Xintai Zhongmu and Dongying Tianze are
included in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
as if the acquisitions had occurred from the date when
the ultimate controlling shareholder first obtained control.
Therefore, the opening balances and the comparative figures
of the consolidated financial statements of the Group as at
31 December 2020 and for the year ended 31 December 2020
have been restated.

ooooOooooOoOooooo
ooDOoooOOooooooOooo
oooooOOooOoOOooooao
ooooOooooOoooooo
oDo0oo0O0ooo0ooooooo
oooooooooooooao
oOooooOOooooooooao
ooDOoooOOooooooOooo
oooooooooooooao
oOooooOOooooooooao
ooDOoooOOooooooOooo
oooooOoOoocooooooao
ooooooooo

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 211000000000

(a)  New or amended standards adopted for the current
reporting period

A number of new or amended standards became
applicable for the current reporting period. The Group did
not change its accounting policies or make retrospective
adjustments as a result of adopting these standards.

IFRS 9, IAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark
IFRS 7, IFRS 4 Reform — Phase 2
and IFRS 16
(Amendments)
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g NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LR R E R

31 December202l OO0 O OOOOOOOOO

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(b)

New and amended standards and interpretations not yet (b)

adopted

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations

have been published that are not mandatory for the

year ended 31 December 2021 and have not been

early adopted by the Group. The Group has already

commenced an assessment of the impact of these new

standards or amendments, certain of which are relevant to

the Group’s operation. These standards are not expected

to have a material impact on the Group in the current

or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future

transactions.

2. JO0O0DbhOoOomoog
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oooooooooono
ooon

oooooooooooo
oooooooocoooo
oooooooocoooo
oooooooooooo
oooooooocoooo
oooooooocoooo
oooooooocoooo
oooooooocoooo
oooooooocooono
oooooooooooo
ooo

Effective for annual
periods beginning

on or after
gooooono
O0o0o00oooooo

IAS 16 (Amendments)

ooo0o0oooileO
ooooao

IAS 37 (Amendments)
ooooooo370
ooooog

IFRS 3 (Amendments)
goooooooo30
ooooao

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

Property, Plant
and Equipment:
goooooono

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
Oo0ood0o -0D00oooo

Reference to the Conceptual Framework
oooooo
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R EU R

31 December2021 00O OOOOOOOOO

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. J0O0O0oOoOoOoOoO

POLICIES (Continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 21100 0000000000

(continued)

(b)  New and amended standards and interpretations not yet (b)) OOO0O0O0OO0O0O0OOOoo
adopted (Continued) ooomon

Effective for annual
periods beginning
on or after
gooooono

oooooooocog

IAS 1 (Amendments) Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current

opooooooilg Ooooooooooo
ooooo
IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Disclosure of Accounting Policies
Statement 2
(Amendments)
oooooooi100 oooooo
oooooooo
ooooo20
ooooao
IAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction
oooooooil2o 0o0ooooooooooooooooo
goooo
IAS 8 (Amendments) Definition of Accounting Estimates
ooooooosd goooooo
ooooao
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

ooo00ooooo170 oooo

1 January 2023

oboooboooo

1 January 2023

obooobooobo

1 January 2023

ooooooood

1 January 2023
[0 0 ] o ) R ] o R ]

1 January 2023
0000 0 O skt
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?‘ g NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g BBmERME

31 December202l OO0 O OOOOOOOOO

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. DO0O0O0OOOOOO0Od
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 2110000000000 00
(continued)

(b)  New and amended standards and interpretations not yet (b)) OOO0000000000
adopted (Continued) ooomon

Effective for annual
periods beginning

on or after
gooooono
O0o0o00oooooo

IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an To be determined
(Amendments) Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

gooooooo Do0o0oooooDooObooooooon ogo
olooooooo ooooo

ooo28Mmo0O00O0

Annual Improvements to 1 January 2022
IFRS Standards
2018-2020

ooooooog ooooooooo
gooooo
ooooooad
ooooo

106 China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R EU R

31 December2021 00O OOOOOOOOO

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2. JO00O0DbOOO0omoog

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting 22 DO00OO0OOODOOOO

2.2.1 Subsidiaries 2210000

Subsidiaries are all entities (including a structured entities)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity where the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for business combinations not under common control by
the Group.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and balance sheet
respectively.
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g NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LR R E R

31 December202l OO0 O OOOOOOOOO

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(continued)

2.2.2 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investment in an associate is
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the
comprehensive income of the investee after the date of
acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to the profit or loss
where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition comprehensive
income is recognised in consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, and its share
of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive income
with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount
of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R EU R

31 December2021 00O OOOOOOOOO

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2. JO00O0DbOOO0omoog

22 O000O0ODOOOOODO
oogd

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(continued)

2.2.2 Associates (continued) 22200000000

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
an associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to
“share of net profit of associates accounted for using the
equity method” in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive income.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and its
associates are recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s
interests in the associate. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Gains or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.
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g NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LR R E R

31 December202l OO0 O OOOOOOOOO

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Consolidation

2.3.1 Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations not under common control. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary
is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquire and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date. The Group recognises any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Acquisitions failed to meet the definition of business
combination are treated as acquisitions of assets and
liabilities instead of business combination.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2. JO00O0DbOOO0omoog

2.3 Consolidation (continued) 23 000D OoO

2.3.1 Business combination (continued) 2310000000

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interests
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts
are less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of
the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognised directly consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

H-EEH-=LE-H

oooooooocoooo
oooooooocooono
oooooooooooo
oooooooocoooo
oooooooocooono
oooooooooooo
oooooooocoooo
oooooooocooono
oooooooooooo
oooooooocoooo
oooo

oooooooocoooo
oooooooocoooo
oooooooooooo
oooooooocoooo
oooooooocoooo
oooooooooooo

ocooooooooocoogg

111



A

s

«

112

g NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LR R E R

31 December202l OO0 O OOOOOOOOO

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Consolidation (continued)

2.3.2 Common control combinations

For common control combinations, the consolidated
financial statements incorporate the financial entities of
the combining entities or businesses as if they had been
combined from the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the control of the controlling
party. The net assets of the combining entities or
businesses are combined using the existing book values
from the controlling parties’ perspective. No amount
is recognised in consideration of goodwill or excess
of acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of acquirer’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
cost at the time of common control combinations, to the
extent of the continuation of the controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income includes the results of each of the
combining entities or businesses from the earliest date
presented or since the date when the combining entities
or businesses first came under the common control,
where there is a shorter period, regardless of the date of

the common control combination.

Transaction costs, including professional fees, registration
fees, etc., incurred in relation to the common control
combination that is to be accounted for by using merger
accounting is recognised as an expense in the year in
which it is incurred
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2. JO00O0DbOOO0omoog

2.3 Consolidation (continued) 23 000D OoO

2.3.3 Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at
the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

2.4 Separate financial statements

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates are accounted for at cost less
impairment (note 2.10). Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates is required upon receiving dividends
from these investees if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of these entities in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment
in the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwill.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors that
makes strategic decisions.

2.6 Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in RMB, while the
Company’s functional currency is Hong Kong dollars
(“HKD").

(if)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(ii)

Transactions and balances (Continued)

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are presented
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income within “finance costs, net”. All
other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income within “other gains — net”.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are presented
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income within “finance income or costs”.
All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income within “other gains — net”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was determined. Translation
differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value
are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For
example, translation differences on non-monetary assets
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the
fair value gain or loss and translation differences on non-
monetary assets such as equities classified as fair value
through other comprehensive income are recognised in

other comprehensive income.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii)  Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the

presentation currency as follows:

o assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the

date of that balance sheet;

° income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income

and expenses are translated at the dates of the

transactions); and

° all resulting exchange differences are recognised
as a separate component of other comprehensive

income.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2. JO00O0DbOOO0omoog

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued) 26 JOO0mod

(i) Group companies (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of any net investment in foreign entities, and
of borrowings and other financial instruments designated
as hedges of such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is sold
or any borrowings forming part of the net investment
are repaid, the associated exchange differences are
reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss on
sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than construction-
in-progress are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment, if any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the

items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to the profit or loss during the financial period in which they are

incurred.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost, net of their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows

Buildings 20 to 50 years
Plant and machinery 5to 10 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Office equipment and furnitures 31to 5 years
Solar photovoltaic power stations 20 to 25 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals (Note 9) are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are
recognised within ‘Other gains — net’ in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

2.8

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction in progress (“CIP”) represents buildings, plant,
machinery and software and power stations under construction
or pending installation and is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Cost includes the costs of construction
of buildings, costs of plant and machinery, and interest charges
and foreign exchange gain/loss arising from borrowings used
to finance these assets during the period of construction or
installation and testing. No provision for depreciation is made
on CIP until such time as the relevant assets are completed
and ready for the intended use. When the assets concerned
are brought into use, the costs are transferred to respectively
categorised property, plant and equipment and depreciated in
accordance with the policy as stated above.

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising buildings, are held
for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both and
are not occupied by the Group. Investment property is measured
initially at its cost, including related transaction costs. After initial
recognition, the Group chooses the cost model to measure all of
its investment properties, which are stated at historical costs less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any. Depreciation of buildings is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate their costs, net of their residual values
over their estimated useful lives of 50 years.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

2.9

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

Investment properties (Continued)

The investment properties’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet
date. An investment properties’ carrying amount is written
down immediately to its recoverable amount if the investment
properties’ carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount. Gains and losses on disposals are
determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income.

Intangible assets

(i) Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries which
is not under common control, represents the excess of
the consideration transferred over the Group’s interests in
the fair value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquiree and the amount of the
non-controlling interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination not under common control
is allocated to each of the units (“CGUs”), or groups of
CGUs, that is expected to benefit from combination. Each
unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Intangible assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Gooawill (Continued)

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which
is the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs
to sell. Any impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Software

Costs associated with maintaining software programmes
are recognised as an expense as incurred. Acquired
software products are capitalised on the basis of costs
incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software.
These costs are amortised over their estimated useful lives
(5 years).
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Intangible assets (Continued)

(iii)  Customer relationship

Customer relationship represents the fair value of
relationship programs arising from the acquisition of
subsidiaries not under common control which is amortised
over the remaining period of validity 20 years.

(iv)  Research and development

Research expenditure and development expenditure that
do not meet the criteria are recognised as an expense as
incurred. Development costs previously recognised as an
expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent
period.

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill is not subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting
period.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets

2.11.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income (“OCI”)
or through profit or loss), and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will
either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments
in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will
depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account
for the equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.

H-EEH-=LE-H

2. JO00O0DbOOO0omoog

211000000000

211100

oooooooocoooo
oooooooo

° oooooooao
ooooooooao
oooOooooo
oomoooooo
ooooo

° oboooooooo
oooo

oooooooocoooo
oooooooocoooo
oooooooooo

oooooooocoooo
oooooooooooo
oooooooocoooo
oooooooocoooo
oooooooooooo
oooooooocoooo
oooooooocoooo
oooooooooooo
oooooocoOoOooao
oooooooocoooo
obooOd™

BEBREHEHEHEEHEHE {EHERD)
B N B B [ (e B ENE
ooooooooogod

ocooooooooocoogg

123



A

?4

124

g NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LR R E R

31 December202l OO0 O OOOOOOOOO

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

2.11.2Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the financial assets have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks

and rewards of ownership.

2.11.3Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered
in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows
are solely payment of principal and interest.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021

2. JO0O0DbhOoOomoog

2110 00000000000

21120000000

oooooooocoooo
oooooooocooono
oooooooooooo
oooooooocoooo
oooooooocoooo
oooooooocoooo
oooooooocoooo
oooooooocoooo
oooooo

211300

oooooooocoooo
oooooocooOomao



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R EU R

31 December2021 00O OOOOOOOOO

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. J0O0O0oOoOoOoOoO

POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets (Continued) 211 000000000000

2.11.3Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are
three measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

° Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
and presented in other gains/(losses) together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

2.11.3Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest,
are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest
income and foreign exchange gains and losses
which are recognised in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain
or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and recognised in
other gains/(losses). Foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in other gains/(losses) and
impairment expenses are presented as separate line
item in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. J0O0O0oOoOoOoOoO

POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets (Continued) 211 000000000000

2.11.3Measurement (Continued)

° Financial assets at FVPL: Assets that do not
meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI
are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL
is recognised in profit or loss and presented net
within other gains/(losses) in the period in which it

arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments
at fair value. Where the Group’s management has
elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity
investments in OCI, there is no subsequent reclassification
of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following the
derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such
investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as
other income when the Group’s right to receive payments
is established.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

2.11.3Measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are
recognised in other gains/(losses) in the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on
equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.

2.11.4lmpairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its debt instruments
carried at amortised cost. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by IFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of
the receivables, see note 3.1(b) for further details.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2. JO00O0DbOOO0omoog

2.12 Offsetting financial instruments 212000000

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated balance sheet where the Group
currently has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.13 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average method.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw
materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity) but excludes
borrowing costs. Costs of purchased inventory are determined
after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs to completion and applicable variable selling
expenses.

2.14 Trade and bills receivables, prepayments and other

receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. If collection of trade receivables and other receivables
is expected in normal operating cycle, they are classified as
current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2. JO0O0DbhOoOomoog

2.14 Trade and bills receivables, prepayments and other 2.14000000000000
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receivables (Continued)

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contai